PALEN™ Canin] AcoowTy A -
PA Petifecr (65~ G4i3 L aniE)
(#: 0¥335#35)

Registration number: 13035335

PA Consulting Group Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the Period from 20 November 2020 to 31 December 2021

A

COMPANIES HOUSE



We believe in the power of ingenuity to build a
positive human future.

As strategies, technologies and innovation collide,
we create opportunity from complexity.

Our diverse teams of experts combine innovative
thinking and breakthrough use of technologies to
progress further faster. Our clients adapt and transform,
and together we achieve enduring results.

PA. Bringing Ingenuity to Life.
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PA Consulting Group ('PA’ or the Greup'} is an innovation and
transformation consultancy headguartered in London, UK,

BA employs over 3,500 specialists in consurmer ang
manufacturing, defence and secunty. energy and utilities.
financiai services, government, health and life sciences,
and transpori.

The board of directors of PA Consulting Group Limited
present their financial and stratagic reviews tor the period
ended 31 December 2021 an pages 5to 21,

These financial statements comprise PA Consutting Group
Limited's consclidated and company results for the period
to 31 December 2021,

Until 2 March 2021, PA Consulting Group Heldings Limited
was the hoiding company for the Group. As explained later
in this report, on 2 March 2021 Green Cornsulting Sclutions
Limited became the new holding company of the Group
and subsequently changed its name fo PA Consulting
Group Limited.

PA Consulting Group Limited is owned by current employees
and by Jacobs Engineering Groun Inc, (Jacobs). Jacobs’
investment in PA is a private eguity-style qvestment, and
reptaces the investment from The Carlyle Group. which
previously invested in PA through CEP IV Participaticns
SICAR, an entity controjted by funds that are affiiates of
The Carlyle Grotin. PA Consulting Group Holdings Limited 1s
now wholly owned by PA Consulting Group Limited.



FINANCIAL REVIEW

2021 financial highlights

£588.8m £175.4m  £137.8m

Fae incaimne Adjusted EBITDA® Adjusted
operating cash
generation***
£691.5m £200.Im
Proforma** Proforma**

This 1s the first set of results for PA Consufting Group
Limited (formerty Green Consuiting Solutions Limited)

and the PA Consulting Group, which cover the period from
the Company’s incorporation on 20 November 2020 to

31 Decemhber 2021. Consequently, no financial comparatives
are presented. The Group slarted trading from the date of
acquisition of the former PA Consulting Group and therefore
results are for 10 months of trading.

The Company was incorporated with the strategic purpose
of acauring 160 per cent ownership of PA Consulting Group
Holdings Limited (formerly PA Consulting Group Limited) and
the former PA Consuiting Group, enabling the divestment
of Carlyle at the end of their investment cycle (the previous
majority shareholder of the Group) and new investment of
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc (Jacobs) as the replacement
majority sharehotder. This is therafore the first year of a new
investment cycle and collaboration and consistent with the
previous group's ownership structure, shareholding n

PA Consulting Group Limited is jointly between investor
and employees, 65 per cent held by Jacobs and 35 per

cent by current employees under a private equity-style
capital structure.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

*Adjusted EBITDA is profit hefore interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation and exceptional items.

“*Proforma numbers represent the Group results had a full
12 maonths of the PA Consulting Group been consolidated.

***Adjusted operating cash generation is net cash flows
from operating activities removing the exceptional
distribution made by the Group's EBT following the
acquisition transaction and transaction related stamp
duty costs.

Acquisition of PA Consulting

The Coempany completed the acquisition of the former

PA Consulting Group on 2 March 2021 for a total amount

of £1,842.7 milhen (£1,575.9 m:llian consideration to
acquire 100 per cent of the total issued equity and

£266.8 milhon to repurchase outstanding loan notes from
Carlyle), funded predaminantly by £1.832.2 mullion of

debt in the form of a £650 mulion term loan and

£1,182.2 million 12 per cent preference shares. with the
remaining £10.5 mitlion fram the 1ssue of ordinary share
eguity. This funding ratio results in the typical private-egunty
balance sheet profile of significant non-current liahilities and
interest expense.

The transaction has shaped other areas of the Group’s
balance sheet too with recognition at acquisition of

£1,755.9 milion intangible assets mainly consisting of
£720.9 million separately identifiable brand and customer
relationship assets reflective of the unigue pesition and
reputation that PA Consulting has in its sector combined with
its strong custamar base. and £1,035.0 million of goodwlf
representing the assembied workforce that has been
acquired. As s inherent in a people-centric husingss

a substantial portion of its value 15 10 1ts team.

Further details of the transaction are included in note 25 to
the accounts.
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Results and performance

The reported consolidated results for the Group's initial
trading pericd only include PA Consulting's trading for the
10 months since acquisition. A proforma set of results to
represent a full 12 months of the acquired Group’s trade is
included at the end of this review.

The Group has produced a strong first set of financial results,
a reflection of the stability and guality of the acquired PA
Consulting business. With the Group's robust customer
partfalio and gradual diminishing of COVID-19 uncertamnties
marking the beginning of business life returning to something
near normal we icok forward to these strong resuits
continuing inte 2022,

Fee income

The Group's main revenue performance measure is fee
income which represents the fair value of ¢consideration
received of receivable for consulting services provided,
excluding rechargeable project costs but inclusive of any
margin on such items. Fee income generated ir the reporting
period was £588.8 millian (F631.5 million on a proforma
iZ-maonth basis).

The Group has delivered some crucial and forward-thinking
orojects for our clients during the period, and has been
invelved with supporting international governments in
establishing and developing their COVID-variant responses
and conlinued vaccine roliout pragrammes, particularly in
the UK and Netherlands, ana helping set best practice for
data privacy in the financial services sectar. an area where
we help financial services firms understand, evolve and
meet the disruptive forces of regulation, techinology and
changing customer expectations through new husiness
modeals and technology.

Coupled with this. there has also been a significant focus
an working with our clients on their environmental and
sustainability 1$5ues; designing a new EV chargopoint as part
of the UK Government’s decarbonisation plan. partnering
with a client to enhance their sustainabie packaging
production method, and assisting a variety of clients

with realising the sustamability benefits of implementing
organisational agility in their businesses. It s expected that
more business opportunities will come in these areas over
the coming vear and will help to drive the Group's results
post-COVID.

Our client work over the panod reflects our belief that
unprecedented changes in society and technology are
creating new opportunidies to make a positive impact.

We have a distinct brand, market positioning and competitive
differentiaticn. As we go from strength-to-strength, we'ra
hiring incredible world-class senior talent, winning exciting
work that directly addresses the biggest challenges and
opportunities our clients face, and further strengthening key
capabilities in areas like digital and design,

While the UK is the Group's dominant geographic market.
we moved to scale in the US on both revenue and headcound,
with cansulting heads up 33 per cent and our stock of work
up 13 per cent, The henefits of the previous PA Consulting
acquisitions made in 2020 are starting to be reahsed and
with 8 new setnor management position focusing specically
on US growth, the Graup s well positionaed ta continue its
growth strategy in the region.

Investment has focussed on organic growth during the
period, with mcreases in the size of fee-earning teams 1n all
of our key geographtes. Our closing consultant headcount
represents a 14 per cent Increase since the acquisition in
March 2021 and while recruitment remains competitive in
the market. we are confident we wili be continuing this
team-build through 2022.

Cverall. the Group has ended the period with a healthy
stock of work of £264.7 miilion and a good sales pipeline at
opportunities as we head into the next year,

Total revenue, which 1s inclusive of income fram rechargeable
project costs, was £676.8 miliion for the period (£793.8 million
proforma for 12 months).



Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted FRITDA is the principal measure ul the Group's
underlying trading performance. This metric represents profit
before inferest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, excepticnal
itermns, and nen-cash gain or loss on disposal of assets.

The Group's adjusted EBITDA was £175.4 miflion

{£200.1 million proforma for 12 months). This has been

a strong underiying perfermance which has resulted from a
combination of cost efficiencies, the team stll predominantly
working remotely throughout the period and consequently
giobal travel and related costs have heen abnarmalty low, and
the demand in the market for our skills, which has meant our
ubllisation rates have been in excess of historical levels.

Wae are expecting our focus on growing the team to remedy
this as we go through 2022 and are also expecting global
travel to steadity resume as we, and our clients, movetoa
mare normal hybric way of working.

Adjusted EBITDA excludes net costs of £198.8 mitlion.

In May 2021 the Group’s employee benefit trust (EBT)
made an exceptional distribution of £188.4 million to
employees in connection with the acquisition of PA
Consulting. To be eligible for this distribution, employees
were required to remain in employment until the payment
date and consequently accounting standards require this
distribution to be recorded as employment cost rather
than a consideration payment despite the close groximity
to the transaction, in addition. £7.9 million of stamp duty
was incurred as part of acquiring the share capital of PA
Consulting Group Holdings timited.

The remaining adjusting items totalling £3.5 million mainly
relate to costs connected with PA Consulting’s prior
acquisitions, share-based payment charge. or have been
incurred as part of business wind-down in geographical
locatians which sit outsicle of the Group's strategic footprint.
Fuli details of these adjusted items are disciosed in note f.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Loss before tax

Inherent with the private equity-style capital structure
created to enable the Company to complete the acquisition,
the interest charges that the Group incurs are sighificant
due to the 12 per cent preference shares which are treated
as debt for accounting purposes due to their terms and
conditions. These shares accumulated £115.5 million of
dividends during the period (treated as finance cost) with
£21.3 million attributable to the Group's £650 milkon
variable rate term loan. The nterest obligation on the
preference shares accumulates on an annual basis unless
settled, therefore the interast expense will be considerably
higher each year until settlement is made. As these are
capital mstruments, there 1s no obligation on the Company
tc cash-settle this amount in the period and consequently
the Group’s mterest cashflow is significantly lower than the
charge incurred.

The tctal net financing costs of £138.5 milion include a
further £1.7 million of interest-like charges in relation to the
Group's leases offset by £0.% million of interest Income.

After net frmancing costs, the Group generated a reporied
loss an ordinary activities hefore tax ot £227.0 million for
the period.

Cash flow

The Group’s cashilow in the penind ts heavily iImpacted

by the acguisition with consideration cash payment of
£1,256.3 millior bemg funded through the £650 milkon term
loan drawdown and £901.4 million of capitalissuance. The
resufting net inflow refates to the £294.1 milhon of cash held
by the PA Consulting Group at the ime of the acguisition,
The Group alse issued £292.3 nihon of share units directly 1o
the former shareholders in exchange for their pravious shares
which is treated as non-cash ccnsideration for the purposes
of cashflow reporting. Stamp duty of £7.9 million was settled
i connection with the acquired shares,

The Group’s net aperating cash outflow of £58.5 miflion 1s
due to the exceptional £188.4 milfion EBT distribulion made
shartly after the acguisition. The £7.9 million stamp duty
cost incurred as part of acquiring the shares is also not
related to trading activities and both items obscure the true
underiying cash generaticn of the business which would
have been £137.8 million inflow for the period without
these dishursements.



The majority of the Group’s other £6.4 mill:on investment
spend has been focused on refreshing the IT hardware and
infrastructure used by our employees in dclivering their
projects and roles and on the final roliout of the Group's new
CRM system which went live during the period and will ailow
us better visibility and tracking of client opportunities.

During the period, the Group conducted various transactions
in its own shares resulting in a net outflow of £25.9 milion,
The main transachon was a £26.5 million share buy-back n
December to repurchase shares from leavers, Full settlement
was made for all shares held and therefore no further
amounts are payabie to these leavers. The shares were held
within the Group's EBT at the period end, Further financing
activities include paying rent abhgations of £7.3 million
mainly from property leases, the majority of which relates to
the Group's UK head office, ana £14.1 million of interest on
the £650 militan term loan. Throughout the period the Group
maintained significant headroom on its loan covenant.

After these investing and fimancing activities, the Group had
an overall inflow of £183.1 milien resulting in a closing cash
and cash equivalents balance of £183.2 miliicn,

Statement of financial position

Non-current assets and liabilities

As a result of the acquisition of the former PA Consulting
Group, as noted earlier, the Groun's balance sheet is
dominated by long-term items recognised as part of the
transaction. These items remain broadly the same at the
reporting dale as at the date of acquisition. resulting m
nen-cyrrent asseis of £1,786.1 million and non-current
liahilities of £2.110.5 million. the main movements since the
acqguisition date being a reduction in intangible assets of
£51.6 million predominantly due to the amortisstion charged
for the period (clasing net book value of £669.3 million},
£89.2 milion increase in borrowings from the accumulation
of dividends on the 12 per cent preference shares offsat

by shares repurchased and held at the period end (closing
book value of £1.921.4 million) and £20.0 million increase
in deferred tax liability in relation to the acquired intangible
assels (closing hook value of £138.7 milhon}.

The Graoug's repurchase of 4.664,399 share units (a share
unit being a stapled ratio of one ordinary R share and

5.6 preference shares) and a smalt number of ardinary

C shares trom farmer empioyees close ta the periad end.

as described previously, has meant that these shares
remained within the EBT and consequently within the
Group at the reporting date. The £0.3 mulfion attributable ta
ordinary shares is drsclosed within equity and £26.1 mill:on
attributable to preference shares is offset against the related
barrowings within nan-current liabilities,

Current assets and liabilities

The Group ended the period with a £70.6 milhion net current
asset position, Whilst the Group has significant trade and
other current lighilities. £222.5 million at the reporting date, it
also holds significant levels of easily available cash resources,
irciuding capacity through its revolving credit facility. In
addition, the Group has £99.4 million of trade receivables
which have a healthy ageing profile with only 19 per cent
past due and minmal expected credit losses (see note 4.2.1
for further details). The Group operates a prompt payment
protocot with its suppliers. in keeping with the UK's Prompt
Payment Code and consequently outstanding trade
payables are consequently low, just £1.9 million at the

end of the period.

The key items included within current liabilities are
£135.2 milion of deferred employee remuneration ano
£7.7 miilion of acquisition-refated contingent payments
which relate to the legacy acquisitions made by the PA
Consulting Group prior 1o the acquisition.



Proforma income statement and financial position

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The reported Group results consolidale ten months of trading of the PA Consulting Group of companies. Proforma numbers
ta reflect a full twelve montns of trading are presented below to help illustrate what the Group's operating results would have

been if the investment had occurred on 1 January 2021.

Reported 10 months trading

Proforma 12 months trading™

2021 2021 2020

£m £m £m

Fee income 588.8 691.5 558.7
Project costs recharged . 880 102.4 B 91.2
Revenue 676.8 793.9 645.9
Adjusted EBITDA 175.4 200.1 137.7
Depreciation and amortisation {64.1) (76.9) (32.4)
Exceptional items (199.8) (200.9) (24.0}
Group operating (loss)/profit (88.5) rn 81.3

*unaudited

The proforma 2021 financial results have been calculated from 12 months actual trading of the criginal PA Consulting Group,
adjusted for significant items that would change due to the acquisition, primarily an increasec depreciation and amortisation

charge far the higher level of acquired mtangitles.
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The Group's retained profit 1s significantly impacted by the capital structure inkerent in a private equity-style investment due
to the high proportion of capital funding being deht or debt-like instruments. This significantly adversely impacts the position
of the balance sheet and the profit before tax and i management’s view does not reflect the strength of the underlying

operations. Had the investment een funded through ordmary share capital rather than the debt-like preference shares, the

Group's capital structure would be more comparable with a normal corporate capitai structure and its key balance sheet and

P&L measures would look as presented helow;

e

Reported Adjustment” Adjusted*

£m £m £m
Pro forma income statement and financial position
Fee income 588.8 - 588.8
Project costs recharged 88.0 - 88.0
Revenue 676.8 - 676.8
EBITDA (24.4) 199.8 175.4 (i}
Depreciation and amaortisation (64.1) - (64.1)
Group operating profit (88.5) 199.8 1113
Net interest payable and simiiar items and other
finance costs {138.5) 1155 (23.00 (i)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation (227.0) 3153 88.3
Pro forma statement of financial position
Non-current assets 1,786.1 - 1,786.1
Net current assets 70.6 - 70.6
Non-current liabilities (2,110.,5) 1,271.4 {8381y (i}
Net assets (253.8) 1,271.4 10176
*unaudited

The aglustments in the current perod relate ta
Rermayal of exiepticnzlincome and costs
. Remoyal o interest on preference shares,

Semayal of amounts due on preferente shares.



STRATEGIC REVIEW

2021 was another remarkable year

Our teams applied thelr ingenuity to tackle life-changing
projects and deliver end-to-end innovation for clients in
challenging fimes.

As the way we live and work continues to change in
unprecedented ways. our purpose of bringing ingenuity

to life is rmore impartant than ever. it drives our focus, unites
our team, and mspires our clients as we wark together to
build a positive human future,

Innovating for our clients

What sets us apart is our dedication to innovating our
clients’ experience of working with us, both in what we do,
and how we do it - striving to bring ingenuity to lifein
every interaction.

And we're parfactly positioned {o do so. We're the only
company with the range of expertise - strategists, Innavators,
designers, consultants, digital experts, scientists, engineers
and technologists - to deliver end-to-and innovation.

We accelerate new graowth ideas from concept, through
design, development, and to commercial success. as weil as
revitalising organisatians - budding the leadership, cultdre,
systams and pracesses to make innovation a reality.

2021 presented a second chaitenging year for many
arganisations, as they grappled with the eftects of the
COVID-19 pandemic. We applied our market-leading
capabilities to build new revenue platfarms, improve
experience for our clients’ customers, and transform
organisations to be more resilient and agile,

STRATEGIC REVIEW

We created a brand strategy for Wildtype, a start-up
developing sustamable fab-grown salmon. ro grow their
markel recognition, and we enapled ciean energy Inngvation
for wind turbine manufacturer, Vestas. We developed a
device to improve end-of-life patient comfort in healthcare
for US medical device start-up, Bearpac Medical, and createc
a ground-breaking virtual reality, ‘Museum of the Future’

for the UK's Defence Sclence and Technelogy Laboratory
(Dstl) to explore the potential impact of military and policy
decisions. technologies, and future operating environments.
And we unveiled a new EV chargepoint design concept at
COP26 to help accelerate the transition to electric vehicies in
our globat fight against climate change.

We codified our work with clients into market-leading
thought leadership: from how to use ordanisational agility
for a competitive edge, how finanhaial services can provide
custamers with more sustainable choices, and how we can
think differently about water fo help decarhonise the planet.

Investing in our people

We deliver great work becauss of our brilkant people,

They bring real-world experience to tackle our clients’
bigyest challenges. And they live cur purpose every day.
We welcomed aver 1,300 new peaple, including 50 partners,
to PA In 2021 and we continue to hire at pace in 2022 -
further growing the critical skills that help our clients thrive.

In return for our pecple's expertise and commitment, we
offer stimulating work, insgiring teams to learn in and an
nclusive and supportive cutture to help them grow.

n
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Our Future

Looking forward, a strang 2021 means we're 10 a great
position for growth.

Our strategy is clear. We'll focus growth on our core
geographies, nvesting in building our deep sector expertise
and bringing together our end-to-end capabilities to create
even more ingenious responses to our clients’ biggest
challenges. And we'l] ensure we continue to recrujt diverse
talent and further invest in creating opportunities for

our people to learn, develop and build exciting and
rewarding careers.

The completion of Jacobs’ strategic investment in

March 2021 marked the beginnmg of a successful new
chapter for uys. Jacohs’ complementary capabilities have
accelerated our growth plans and further strengthened our
ahility to deliver iInnovative solutions for our clients.

We have big ambitions for the months and vears ahead, as
we puild on the momentum of a successful year.

Inclusion and diversity

We continued our commitment to equal opportunities
and progressing cur Inclusion & Diversity (1&D) agenda
during 2021,

We made progress agamst our commitments ta fight racism

and drive lasting change, We ran firm-wide training on topics

fike allyship. and we held canversations with leadership
tearns about intersectionality and tokenism. We launched

@ Women in Leadership programme which supports our
drive to increase representation of women at senior levels by
building professional growth and aspiration and helping to
break down any barriers to progression.

We partnered with schools. colleges and universities, and
specialist recruitment firms. to recruit more diverse talent
at every lavel, To empower young pecple from diverse
backgrounds to fulfil their ambitions, we joined forces
with the Nationa! Society for Black Engineers (NSBE) and
Generation Success, and improved the diversity of our
gracuate racruitment pipeline,

We backed new mnitiatives from our RISE, Mental Health and
Wellbeing, PRIDE, anc Women's employee networks. and
we launched a new Military Network,

We also pubbished our first internal Diversity Data reportin
2021. The report pravided insight on aur Gender Pay Gap
and our Equal Pay audit process and results. In addition,
the report shad light on low diverse talent flows through
our organisation by applying an ethnicity lens to our firm
camposition in the UK and US, and a gender lens to our firm
camposition and promotion rate giobally,

Gender is just one facet of diversity and the table below
provides a breakdown of gender diversity across various
levels ot P& as at 31 Decernber 2021,

Fermale Male
1,378 2,280
[SRcRa I [ e e HAN
tne sermor leadershup team and directors of
LE e SN e i L CarE
Senior leadership team 38 189

i PR

Directors of PA Consulting Group Limited 0]
at 31 December 2021




Employee wellbeing and development

We have continued to prioritise the health of cur people
during the pandem:c, using this as a guiding principle for our
approach to hybrid working for employees at home and in
our offices.

We launched a wellbeing microsite earty in 2021, providing
access to information on services, tips, and resources o
support our peaple in pricritising and maintaining their
wellbeing. We also hosted a series of events and workshops
on topics ranging from sleep tc the cathartic power of
creative writing. We alsc help our teams hone their craft by
offering ongoing learning and mentorship opportunities.
During the year, our people cormpleted the equivalent of
more than three years of virtual learning on PA Academy
and our Learning and Development team launched 16 new
courses. Meanwhile, our Graduate Development Programme
and Mentoring circles supported the welceming of 172
Graduate analysts across our offices in five countries.

Supporting our communities

Creating a positive human future for all extends beyond our
peaple and client efforts to endeavounng to unlock Ingenuity
acrass wider society.

We run impact-triven imitiatives at a firm-wide level anri

we partner with organisations in the places we live and

work to offer pro bono assistance to communities — and our

partnership with The PA Foundation will amplify this impact

in 2022. Qur peonte will volunteer their skills and experience,
working alongside the Foundation, to make a real difference,

In 2021 we also welcomed disadvaniaged young people
onto our virtual UK and US Springboard work experience
programme. where our experts and clients mentored them
as they developed solutions to global issues. We donated
hundreds of PA laptops to The Turing Trust, so they can
conunue to give children in the UK and Malawi digital access.
Through our Raspberry Pi Competition, we challenged
stugents in the UK and the Netherlands to put their
engimeering and coding skills to the test, using a Raspberry
Pi microcomputer to design technology to create a positive
human tuture for everyone foliowing the global pandemuc.

STRATEGIC REVIEW

While our Women in Tech (WiT) network trained women
in digital skills to address the gender imbalance in
technology careers.

We continued 1o champion equal opportunity across
defence through our longstanding partnership with Women
in Defence UK, whereby cur people volunteer time for
activities like a cross-defence mentoring programme that
saw 80 per cent more mentes-mentor parrings last vear,
And we provided coaching services to The Ferces
Employment Charity to support military veterans who are
locking for work ar transitfioning out of the armed forces.

Environmental, Health & Safety

Envirenmental Sustainability

Substantial changes in how PA is responding to the climate
crisis were made 1in 2021. Our hoard made a commitment to
set Science Based Targets in line with a global temperature
rise of 1.5°C above pre~mdustrial levels. We also made a
commitment to reach net zero across all our cperations by
2030 as part of the development of our first formal Carbon
Reducticn Plan.

This has all been against the backdrop of the continued
COVID-19 pandenuc, and :he ongomg impact which that has
had on the way we work., We have conbinued to support our
colleagues ta work safely and productively from home, white
beginning the transitior to a hybnd work model, giving them
the fiexibility to deliver their best work wherever they are.

The continuaticn of COVID-related restrictions has again
artificially depressed our business travel, however we saw
a gradual increase m travel durng the year.
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2021 Energy and carban summary

Data for the UK, 2020 vs. 2021

Scope Source 2020 2020 GHG 2021 2021 GHG Difference
consumption emissiens (¢C02e) consumption  emissions (¢CO2e)
Gas consumption 2,444 990 kwh 443.6 2,040,749 kWh 3755 -16a
Stape 1 - direct F-gas consumption 43 kg 5.2 G kg et -140%
GHG emissions - -
Other fuel : !
i n l
consumption not apphcable not applicable ot apphicable not applcable
Scone 2 - energy - 5 97g 7 " - 2995 575 kv . ac
‘ndirect ermissions Purchased electricity 2.739.782 kWwh 638.8 2,725,875 kwh 578.8 )
Purchased electricity see above c see above . s
l 55 : 51.2 ~7
T&D losses consumption consumption
Water consumption & ; o.10 sogires 33 16,867,000 hires 45 45
treatment
Waste (recycling and & 24 g 2.9 e
fandhih
F-gas consumption P rokg s
{lezsed offices) 4= 2.8 (estimated) 08 9%
SCpC 3 - Oer g o air travel £.408,203 um 875.1 1595890 km 5587 582
indirect emissions In¢ AR S s T o
Business car & 1,359,384 §m 361.2 1427 534 km 278.5 kN
taxi trave!
Business train travel 2,900,455 km 194.3 1.658.561 <m 58.9 -5
Business public 24,987 kim 0.8 5972« 02 e
transport travel
Paper procurement Q.it 3.4 alr 3.4 04
Employee commuting 18,386 km 575.7 23,872 km INE.6 23%
5,184,772 kWh 3,164.7 4,766,624 kWh 24273 ~23%

Total

*Thiy year. far offices that s not have water Zormsumpner oata, an eytmate of 4m Jemctayvee/annum was made based on -ndustry benchmatk.

office usage

for rypical



Global data, 2020 vs. 2021

Scope

2020
consumption

Source

2020 GHG
emisstons {tC02e)

2021
consumption

STRATEGIC REVIEW

2021 GHG
emissions (1C02e)

Difference

Scepe 1 - airest
GHG emissions

Gas cansumption 2,582, c63

2,074.768

3856

40.0kg

F-gas consumption

Other fuel

. icabl
consumpticn not applicable

C.0

not applicable

not applicable

not applicable

SCR08 7 - BNASY b paced electricity 3,135,751 7783 3.230.207 772.3 1%
indirect emissions
Purchased electricity see above see ahove o .
64.9 X 6.7 -3
T&D losses consumption consumption
Water consumption& 3 312 o6 1 res 40 13.538.000 Frres 5.7 430
treatment
Waste {recycling and 13t 30 18t 14 574
fandfilly
F-gas consumption " . N o . .
estimate . timate 4.1 41
(leased offizes) 2.2kg {estimatech 2.9 3ky {estumated) +
Scopn 3 - cther B - a7 Ann L : a1 e aas . .
indirect emissions Business air travel A7 A7 1,496.1 2,200,497 km ) 7‘__04_1,0 ‘_55
Business car & 2.243.507 %~ 408.4 1,568.093 km 300.9 265
taxi travel
Business train travel A 317 G5k 159.5 1,827.855 km 4.8 -59
Business public 37,853 ki 1.2 15,840k 0.5 .55
transport travel
Paper procurement g1 3.4 alu 3.4 450
Employee commuting 23422 7328 29.840 km 8226 20"
Total 5,718.414 k'Wh 4,079.3 5,304,973 kWh 3,103.2 ~24%

‘This yeal, for offizes that dit not have water consumphian data, an tafimate of 4r

office usage.

~Yemployee/annam was made based onindust v nenchmarks for Tvpical
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In 2021 we increased fee income while decreasing both Methodology
the carban intensity of our offices and reducing air travel.

) . ) is report follows the GHG Protocol’s Corporate Accountin
resufting in a further decrease in the carbon intensity of the This rep ' 4 g

and Reporting Standard and HM Government’s Environmental

work w . ‘ o .
e do Reporting Guidelines (2019}, The UK government’s DEFRA
intensity measures: greenholise gas reparting: conversion factors 2020 were used
for making carbon equivalent calculations. These emissions
2021 2020 are defined under three different scopes by the GHG
UK Global UK Glabal Protocol, as shown in the table below:

Carbon 2,427.3 31232 32650 407932
emissigns Natural gas Inciuded Required
(wiey) ungler

- F-gas In¢lucled Streamlined
Feemcome 3418 631.7 508.8 ©42.9 S Energy and
e Carbon

- T - - Fuef ail Ircluded Reparting
Emissions 4.48 4.43 822 5.28 (SECR)
Intensity ratio
T g, Seonl 7 Gnd-supphed Included Required
N electrity under SECR
Headcount 2.708 2532 2,426 3139
- T Business travel Included
Emissions 0.90 0.88 1.52 30
Intensity ratio
DT e Procurement Included
Electricity

In Eine with the requirements of SECR, the above data Not required
) . transmission and Included

Include electricity consumption figures basad on the SUTES g anhution under SECR

“location-based " approach. n other words overall carbon

intensities for the electricity gnd in each country. However,

this does not take into account individual contracts in place

for renewahle electricity for several of our offices, including Employee Icluded

our Global Innovation and Technology Centre (GITC) in Fommuting

Melhourn, UK. our anly owned facility. Taking into account

these renewable electricity contracts, our GHG emissions

wolld reduce to 1.900.4 tCO e, and global emissions would

be 2,574.4tC0.e.

Waste

Included
management




Where possible, verifiable date was used, for axample
obtained through metered data or using inveices or annual
statements from suppliers. Where verifiable data was not
avatlable, consumption data was estimated by using data
frem the most recent comparable time pericd to fili the

gap, calculating figures using pro-rata extrapolation or
henchmarking to proxy the energy consumpticn of one site
to a similar site. The report data forming this report has been
comptied and verified by an external consuitancy.

Energy efficiency action

We have continued to work to reduce our carbon footprint
during the year by improving cur maintenance regimes for
plant and eguipment at our GITC, continuing to replace
lighting with LEDs and implementing an upgrade to our
huilding management system. This will give us greater
analytical capability to make further savings on running
the facility in the future.

We have continued preparation work for a major
refurbishiment to the building, which we hope to begin in
2022. We expect substantial eriergy savings to accrue
from the work undertaken. to lead us on our path towards
net zero,

Social responsihility

At PA we are committed to the equal treatment of all and
we freat all our people with dignity and respect, provichng
a productive working environment free from discrimnation,
victimisation, coercive pressure, bullying and harassment.

We are a UK Living Wage accredited employer and we use
oniy specified. reputable employment agencies ta source
labour. and verify the practices of any new agency hefore
accepting workers from that agency.,

We take steps to ensure that there 1s no hurnan trafficking
or modern siavery in our supply chain or within any part of
our business, and we encourage our suppliers 1o adopt hest
practices in terms of human rights and diversity, which we
assess through our supplier pre-guabfication guestionnaire,

In 2021 we again had no significant work-related accidents -
those which occur as a result of our work or workplace, and
which reguire notificatron or reporting to the tocal regulatory
authority (e.q. Reporting of Imunies, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR} in the UK).

We have continued to strengthen our management systems
and have maintained our accreditation agamnst 150 45001
heaith and safety management at the same sites that already
hold 150 14001 environmental management.

STRATEGIC REVIEW

Economic responsibility

Economic responsibifity s enshrined in our purpose, our
values and our business ororesses. PA supports sustamable
procurement methods, whether prescrined by legislation

ar through our own policies. As well as the traditional
procurement benchmarking criteria of price and guality. we
support the ‘triple bottom line” ideclogy and consider soctal,
environmental and economic factors in the procurement
decision-making process. Qur supplier diversity policy helps
ensure that the contracts we place are with a diverse range
of suppliers.

We remain an appreved signatory 1o the UK Prompt Payment
Code and we report twice annually on our payment practices
and performance in accordance with the regulations made
uridler the Small Business. Enterprise and Employment Act
2015 inthe UK.

PA has an open and positive working relationship with the
tax authorities in all the countries in which we operate. and 15
committed to prompt disclosure and transparency in alf tax
matters. PA pays fully the taxes due and the Group has a
‘fow risk’ rating from the UK tax autharity, recognising its
strong governance and control processes and attitude to
compliance in the Group's {argest operating region.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

In the course of our day-ta-day operations, we face a number
of risks and uncertainties. Responsibility for ensuring that an
appropriate risk management system is in place to identify
and manage all significant nsk exposores throughout the
Group rests with the board of PA Consulting Group Limited.

The board of PA Consulting Group Limited, through its
commuttees, has put in place a structure of policies and
processes to identify, assess and manage risk, Risk mitigation
strategies include the implementation of internal controls
that. by thew nature, are designed to manage and reduce,
rather than elim:nate. risk.

The Risk Management Committee has been given overall
responsibility by the board for monitoring existing and
emerging risks. It maintains oversight of the mitigating
actions to manage and reduce risks through keeping a central
register of risks and mitigating actions and by viewing regular
status reports from its risk subcommittees.

The risks that the board seeks to manage fall into four main
categories: market risk, operational risk. professional risk and
financial risk.

Market risk is managed by the Operating and Client
Committees

The Qperating and Client Committees comprise the leaders
of PA's corporate functions and market-facing business
urits, The Operating and Client Committees consider the
appropriateness of PA's strategy and manage the Group's
exposure to sector. competitor and geographic risk as well
4s reputational risk.

Operational and professional risk is managed by the
Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises corporate and
consulting staff and 1s chaired by the Chief Executive Officar,
It reviews the Group's non-financial risk, including eperationat
and professional risk. it ensures that all new and emerging
risks are appropriately evaluated and that any necessary
actions are identified and implemented,

The Risk Management Committee also provides guidance to
the heads of PA’s consulting teams and corporate functions
and to those responsible for managing indivicual risks.

Financial risk is monitored by the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises directors of the board of

PA Corsulting Group Limited. It 15 responsible for

overseeing financial control risks. The Audit Committee
reviews the affectiveness of systems for PA's internal financial
cantrol envirenment.

The Qperating and Client Committees, Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee report regularly to the
hoard to demonstrate that risk is being effectively managed
across the Group.

The board of PA Consulting Group Limited considers the
matters described in the table below to be principal risks that
face the Group and that could affect the business, results of
operations, turnover, profit, cash flow, assets and the delivery
af our strategy. We do not include thase risks that are likely
to affect businesses generally or that are in the nature of our
day-to-day operations.



Risk description

Potential impact

STRATEGIC REVIEW

Mitigation

Market risk

The continued economic
uncertainties in many of
the major markets could
have an adverse impact on
client gemand.

Ir these uncertain times. 2 nemizer of market risks
are heightered, such as areductior in chent dermand
leachng to 3 loss of significant revenue streams,
pressure on our billing rates or the collapse of a key
cl-ent. exposing the Group to potental financial loss.

We have in place an account management programme
focusing particular attention on our top accounts ta ensure
stability, accaunt growth and cusiomer satisfaction are

ali achieved. Dur commercial apnroach ensures that we
pasition our offerings ' & way that 1s Ccommensurate with
marke: conditions, vet at tne sace timoe reflects the value
propositicn provided to ol clienss.

Damage to the PA brand
and reputation could have
an adverse impact on
clrent dermana.

The sirength of our birand 15 crucial to our business.
It helps us attract clients, generate new and exciting
opportunities and attract and retain our people who
value whar we stand for. The carcepion of PA and

175 offering coula be damaged by fadure te mamtan
high standards of service delivery and the right
culture, This Zould tead to aloss of fature profitability
as fewer clients award business to PA and could lead
to a deterioration m our teputaticn.

Qur account management programme has a strong focus
on ensunng cystomaer satisfactian, with mandarcry chent
value reviews for key clients and assignments, We have
strang internal capability in PR and rmarkating and access to
external experts, We also regularly wndertae independent
chent research. Our Code of Conduct, heople policies and
rmandatory raiming are designed to ensuie that we doerate,
and are scen to operate. in accordanse with gur values and
to the hughest ethical standards,

Operational risk

Business continuity risks
associated with data
SeCurity,

As with all professional service rms, we nandle
sensitive client information as well as personal
mFormaton and sur own conf dential data. Ensurning
that we handle such information securely is critical to
compliance with data protection legislation and our
repiiranion with clients, emoloyens and government,

We have achigved global recertificolion to the 1SO 27002
standard for anformation secarity management, 3s well s
Cybrer Essentials and Cyber Essentials Plus, one of very few
organisations in the UK that have achieved this standard
for 1t global oerations.

Jur brand in cyber-
security cansulting
inzieases vis cHity,
which may lead to being
target2d by third part es.

Hacktv sts, Malign zutsiders or even o eign
governments may targel PA. Should such an attack
successfully disrupt PA’s operations or cause us to
lcsa data, this might have a sigruficant -mpact on our
contnung word ‘or Lhients.

We have invested in technical systems and controis to
actively both detect and prevent cyber threats from
affecting PA systems, and have successfully undertaken
indegendant third-party assessment of these controls,
Qur people receive traiming to maintain their awareness
of issues and threats and to educate them in that role of
encounterrg suclh thieats,

Professional risk

Our dependence on
recruitment and retention
of talent with the right
sialls and expernience.

Sur abulilv Lo grow, meel the demards of the market
and corpete affeliinaly with other consuitancy firms
15, to alarge excent. degeident anhaving the ralent
1 the crganisation and performing weil. The foss of
key talent. or tha inability tn attract people wth the
right skills. could have a senous impact an cur abilty
Lo service chent contracts.

Our most important assct is our people. To ensure (gl we
recruit and retain the right people and always have the
right people with the right mix of skills on an assignment
feam, we have "Igorous recratinent processes and o
robust approach to performance managerment to ensure
nciviguals are mesting ag eed objectives, We also have
an extensive learning and development curriculum which
delivers developrnent through Groun courses. digitat
platforms ane rdividual coaching,

Risks arising from legal
and requlatory changes
and compliance with
fegislat:on.

Our operations are subject to a broad spectrum of
legal ard regulatory reguirgments in teiatron to,

for example, environimental 1ssues, employmeans,
pensians ard tax, and egulatons governing the
GroLp's activities and servicas, We ;e aware of

the importance of complying with all applicable
legislation affecting our busness activities and of trg
potential financal impact and damage T2 1reputation
that can 1gsult from g breach,

Regulatory developments are actively monitored by

the Risk Management Commuittee and by PA’s Legal and
Company Secretariat departments to ensure that new
and existing laws and regulations are complied with and
traimning neeas are addressed. Best prartice governance
processes are in place acrgss the Group and we have a
comprehensive Code of Conduct. conflicts management
programme and training pregramme which reinforce
adherence to good working practices and wili protect us
fram o requlatary breach.

Financial risk

Excrange rate fluctyations
could create earnings and
alance sheer volatiiy,

We aperate In g number of different countries and
the Group's overseas net asset values and overseas

rafits are. therefare. subject to currency fluctuations
UPON Jonversion Intg sierhing,

The substantial majority of PA's assets are denominated In
starhing, Material net asset exposu' es are hedged.

Insufficient fu=ds available
in the right currency to be
able to settle obligations
as they hecoma due,

The Group has a number of operationa! and debt-
servicing cash reguirements in a variety of currencies
and Is therefore dependent on having access to
finds at the right time to avoid gefault.

The Group generates funds from its operational activities
in excess of its operational requirements and has
substantial cash balances available which are held as
easlly accassible, with an adaquate level mairtamed i key
currencles where aporovriate.
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Section 172(1) Statement

Thus section comprises our Section 172(1) Statement and
should be read n conjunction with the financial and strategic
reviews on pages 5 to 19. The directors of the Company have
acted in a way they considered, in good faith, to be most
likaly to promote the success of the Company for the benefit
of the members as a whale, and in doing so had regard.
ameng other things to:

*  the likely consequences of any decision in the long term
+ the interests of the Company's employees

+  the need to foster business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

* the impact of the Company’s operations on the
community and the environment

* the desirability of the Company maintaining its reputation
for high standards of husiness conduct

* the need to act fairly as between thie members of
the Company.

PA's six core values - passionate about people, inspired by
chent value, creating commercial success, prizing our ethical
approach, seeking to excel and achieving success through
shared endeavours - are enshrined in our Code of Conduct
and drive the way PA and its directars, behave with clents,
with each other and with everyone else we meet through
olir work,

Qur core values define aur organisation and represent a
nersanal committment by every ane of cur pecple worldwide.

The governance and control framewaork which is in place
across the Group ensures that our core values are upheld
and that decisions made by the board give due regard to
the long-term impact of those decisions, the interests of the
Company's stakeholders, and the impact of the Campany’s
activities on the community. the environment and the
Company’s reputation. The key stakeholders which are
considered by the board when making decisions include our
people, clients and shareholders, as well as sunpliers, the
anvircnment and the communities around us.

The PA board receives regular and timely information on
all kay aspects of the business, and decisions made are
done so after careful consideration and debate of available
information and detsiled papers which focus on ralevant
stakeholder considerations.

The directers also have access to advice and guidance from
the Group Company Secretary, as well as PAs Company
Secretariat and Group legal functions when discharging their
duties. The board has made a number of decisians during
the year which are described in this report. Examples of how
the board has engaged with its stakeholders during the year
are included throughout the report, with further examples
provided below.

Qur clients

Qur clients, and the work we do for them. are cornerstones
of our purpose, and strategy. The way we contribute to our
clients and build successful and enduring relationships is
critical to our success. We engage with our clients closely,
working side by side with them in every job we da. In
addition to the work we do every day on client assignments,
we produce rnany insight and thought leadership pieces

on issues that are togp of mind of our clients. Each year, we
publish an ingenuity review, which provides an important
window’ on PA for our chents, as well as investors, PA people
and potential new joiners. To further understand how well

we gre meeting the reeds of gur clients, we undertake client
value reviews. The results of these surveys show that aver

a5 per cent of clients would recommend us based on our
work. We're proud to work with clients who make a positive
contribution an ground-breaking and innovative projects that
wmprove people’s ives, We care about what we do and the
impact we deliver. Qur clients are ambitious to innovate and
transform thewr orgamsations, markets and society, and we
go the extra mile to realise that goal.

Our people

Everything we do starts and ends with our brilliant people,
It's our ingenious mindsel, and our approach ta our client
wark, which enaoles us to five our purpose.

We engage with our people regularly throughout the year
and through a variety of means. We have a comprehensive
intranet site, digital learning academy, weekly PA news
updates, and regular all-staff messages from our Chief
Executive Qfficer and other members of our senior leadership
team. We alsc hold many in-person events and gatherings
throughout our giobal offices.



We regularly undertake an engagement survey of our people
and in 2021, 75 per cent of our people shared their views,
providing 26,000 camments. Listening and respondmng to
this feedback is a huge part of delivering on our commitment
to creating a place which attracts the best and brightest

minds and enables everyone to thrive and develop ther skills,

every day. This feedback shapes our firm-wide action olan,
which in 2021 included a refresh of our career framewaorks,
a review and benchmark of cur appreach to reward and
enhancements to our appreach to IT.

Qur shareholders

Employee share ownership continues to be an important
part of PA's culture and brand. It 15 a key fealure of our
strategy and is highly valued by our people. PA management
works closely with Jacobs. who have representation on

the PA Consuiting Group Limited board. PA employees are
represented on the PA board oy the Chief Executive Officer
and the former Chief Executive Officer.

Our communities

We are proud that our people engage in our communtities,
giving their time and expertise [o develop and nspire others,
particularly those facing disadvantage, to be the innovators
and leaders of tomorrow. (n 2021, we continued to give back
to cur communities through various new and established
initiatives and the establishment of The PA Foundation will
acceierate these efforts.,

This strategic review was approved by the board on
8 April 2022 and signed on ks behalf by:

e fpes

Ken Toombs
Chief Executive Officer

FA Consulting Group Limited
Company number: 13035335

STRATEGIC REVIEW
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report for PA Consulting Group
Limited for the period ended 31 December 2021,

Principal activities of the Group

The Company is & holding company within the PA Consulting
Group. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the
provision of a range of consultancy services to governments
and industry. A fair review of the business of the Group
during the financial period ended 31 December 2021, the
position of the Group al the end of the financial venod, and
a balanced and comprehensive analysis of the performance
of the Group's business during the period and future
developments, are included in the financial and strateqic
reviews on pages 5to 19.

Directors

The directors of the Company who were 1n office during
the period ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
signing of the financial statements were as follows:

John Alexander fappointed 2 March 2021)

Ruairidh Cameron {appointed 2 March 2021, resigned
29 November 2021)

Michael Carlin (appeinted 9 February 2021, resigned
2 March 2021)

Kevin Berryiman (appomted 2 March 2021)
Steven J, Demetriou (appointed 2 March 2021)
Alan Middieton (appoirted 2 March 2021)
Robert Pragada (appointed 20 November 2020)

Kenneth Toombs (appointed (2 March 2021)

Directors' indemnity and insurance

In accordance with the articles of association, the Company
has provided to all the directors an indemnity (to the extent
permitted by the Companies Act 2006) in respact of liabihities
ncurred as a result of their office. and the Company has
taken out an insurance policy in respect of those liabilities
for which directors may not be indemnified.

Nelther the indemnity, nor insurance, provides cover in the
event that the director is proved to have acted dishonestly
or fraudulently,

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
in respect of the financial per:od ended 31 December 2021.
Amounts accruing on preference shares at period end are
included m note 18 of these financial statements.

Political and charitable donations

No pohtical donations were made during the period.

During the period the Group mace charitable donations of
£245,388. These donations carrespond 1o recommendations
made by individual employees of the Group in 2021, in
respect of which they individually waived an element of their
deferred remuneration.

Employees

Employee involvement and engagement

We encourage cur pecple across PA to take active
rasponsibulity for improving our performance, whather
through enhancing working practices or drawing attention
to behaviours or other 1ssues that give thent concern,

To encoudrage feedback and suggestions, PA has introduced
procedures and mechanisms to create a cuiture that aflows
people to speak up with confidence and in good faith in the
expectation of being heard.

PA regularly condutts an engagement survey, which informs
our pecble pians, and pravides all employees with access

to a ‘Give PA your suggestions' facility. Employees and

third parties, including clients and suppliers, can also raise
concerns through a confidential and anonymaus whistle-
blowing heipline that 1s operated externally. Throughout the
vear ecmployees were updated on financial and economic
factors affecting the performance of the Company.



Supporting colleagues with disabilities

PA is committed to creating a work environment that
supports and mspires all individuals, and we give full
consideration to applications from people with disabilities.
Arrangements are made for PA employees who have
become disabied in their time at PA to be supported in their
current roles or to be trained for other positions within our
organisation. employees with disabiities are provided with
equal access to learning, career development and promotion
as are available to all employees. within the imitations of
their aptitudes and abllities.

Gaing concern

As required by company legislation, the directors are
responsible for reviewing and concluding that the use of the
going concern basis of preparation is appropriate for the
Group. In consideration of this, the Directors have taken into
actount short and mid-term trading and cash forecasts,
covering the period to June 2023, potential global or
economic impacts on the numbers inciuded in those
forecasts and the availability of funding sources for

the Group.

The base forecasts used as part of the review align

with the board-approved budget and long-term

plan and show operating cashfiow to be strong throughout.
Consideration has been given to any potential downside
from the current Ukraine-Russia conflict and the

increasing inflationary environment in the UK (the

Group's predominant gecgraphy).

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Group does not operate in either the Ukraine or Russian
territories and therefore the conflict 1s not expected to
create a significant disruption to the current business modet.
A forecast scenario representing a reasonable increase

to costs and prices has been prepared and reviewed o
understand the pcotential impact on the business from
continued inflation which demonstrated that a sufficient
amount of operational cash headroom is available to the
Group to tolerate such increases, The Group’s business modet
has meant that historically the Group is self-funding from its
operating cash generation. Tradma and cash conversion has
maostly been unaffected by the economic uncertainty in the
{ast two years which has shown that this business model is
robust ang Hexible to adapt to external volatdity.

The Group's financing is a combination of debt ang cash an
hand with the debt being funded from the Group's majority
investor, tacobs Engineering Group Inc, The maturibes on
these debt instruments are well beyond 12 months and
include an undrawn £50 million revolving credit facility which
provides additional financing capacity should 1t be reguired.
There are no financial covenants that would cause default
during the peniod undet constderation. The directors believe
these sources provide the Group with access (o sufficient
jonger-term funding and the ultimate lender has appropriate
packing and headroom to support the lending fer the
foreseeable future. -

Having due regard to these matters, the directors are
satisfied that the Group has sufficient rescurces and higuidity
to continue to trade for the foreseeable future and conclude
that there is ne material uncertainty arcund the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern,

Financial instruments

The Group uses forward foreign currency contracts to reduce
exposiure [o foreign exchange rates. Further information
ahout the most significant financial risks faced by the Group
and how these are managed can be found in the strategic
review and in note 17 of these financial statements.
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Research and development

PA is committed to new knowledge creation and innovation
through the provision of research and development for
clients and through investing in projects internally. The
Group will continue its policy of investment in research and
development in order to retain a competitive position in
the market,

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each director has taken steps in order to make themself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Group's auditors are aware of that information.
The directors canfirm that there is na relevant information
that they know of and of which they know the auditors
4dre unhgware,

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations. Caompany law reguires the directors tc
prepare financial statements for each financial year.

Under that law the directors have elected to prepare

the Group financial statements in compliance with the
International Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and the Company
financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. The financial
statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that penocd.

i preparing those finarcial statements. the directors are
required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply
them consistently

« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prugent

» state whether applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
“nancial statements

* presare the financial statements on the going concern
Dasis unjess it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
wilt contimue i~ business.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the abave
reciurernents in preparing the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
reccrds that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial pesition of the Group and the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities. The directors
are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of

the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website, Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ responsibilities statement

Each of the directors whao is listed on page 22 confirms that
ta the best of their knowledge and belief:

« the financial statements for the financial period ended 31
Decemhber 2021, prepared for the Group, in compliance
with the International Accounting Standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. ana
for the Company, in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framewark, give a true
and farr view of the assets, liahilities, financial position
and loss of the Group and the Company respectively; and

» the strategic review includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
nosition of the Group and the Company, together with
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
they face.

This directors’ report was approved by the board on
8 April 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Ken Toombs
Chief Executive Officer

PA Consulting Group Limited
Company number: 13035335



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the members of PA Consulting Group Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PA Consulting
Group Ltd. (the parent company’) and its subsidiaries

(the "Group”) for the period ended 31 Decemper 2021

which comprise the consolidated statement of profit or

loss, the consclidated and parenl company statement of
fimancial pasition, consalidated statement of cash flows, the
consohidated statement of other comprehensive Income.

the consolidated and parent statement of changes in
shargholder’s eqguity and the related notes 1 to 26, incjuding
a summary of significant accounting policies. The financiai
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the Group financial statements is applicable faw and
International Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requiremcnts of the Companies Act 2006. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements s applicable

law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, mcluding
FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

in our cpimon:

¢+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
Group's and of the parent company's affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of the Group’s loss for the period
then ended;

v+ the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with international Accounting
Standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act;

+ the parent company financial statements have been
preperly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice: and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with international
Standards on Auditing (UK) (iSAs (UK)) and applicabie

law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK. including the FRC's
Elhical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibiibes i accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is
sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparaton of the financal statements is appropriate.
Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group
and parent company’s ahility to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included:

Performing a walkthrough of the Group's financial close
process, to confirm our understanding of managemeint’s
going concern assessment process and engaging with
management early to ensure all key risk factors were
considerad in their assessment,

«  Obtaining management’s going concern assessment,
including the cashflow forecasts and covenant
calcuiations for the going concern period which covers
the period to June 2023,

+  Perforiming procedures to confirm the clerical accuracy
and appropriateness of the of the underiyving mocdel,
The Group has modelied a base case scenaric and
plausible downside scenario in thewr cashflow forecast
and covenant calculation,

« Assessing the factors and assumptions included in each
madelled scenario.

« Considering the mitigating factors inciuded in the
cashfiow forecasts and covenant calculations that are
within control of the Group. This includes review of the
Group’s non-operating cash outflows and evaluating the
Group's ability to control these outflows as mitigating
actions if required. We also venfied credit facilities
avaliable to the Group.

+ Performing reverse stress testing in order to identify
what factors would lead to the Group utilising all liguidity
or breaching the financial covenant during the gaing
concern period.

» Reading the Group's going concern disclosures included
in the annual report in order to assess that the
disclosures were appropriate and in conformity with
the reporting standards.
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Based an the wark we have performed, we have not
identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group and parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern for & period of at
least 12 months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors
with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all future
events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is
not a guarantee as to the Group’s ability to continue s a
Going concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included

n the annual report set out on pages 4 to 24, other than the
financial statements and our auditar's report thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annuzl report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the cther infarmation and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form
ot assurance conciusion thereon,

Qur responsibility is to read the gther information and,

In acing so, constder whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge cbtained in the course of the audit or otherwise
appears to be materizlly misstated, i we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaterments.
we are required to determine whether this givesrise to a

matenal misstatement in the financial statements themselves.

if. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is g material misstaterment of the other information.
we are requwred to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, based an the wark undertaken in the course of
the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the
directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with
the financiat statements; and the strategic report and
directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal require ments.

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Group and the parent company and its environment otitained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified matgrial
misstatements in the strategic report or drrectors’ report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
In relation to which the Campanies Act 2006 reguires us to
report to you i, in our opinicn:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, cr returns adeguate for our audit have
nat been received from branches not visited by us: or

» the parent company financial statements are nof in
agreement with the accounting records and returns: or

«  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanaticns
we requtre for our auct,

Responsibilities of directors

As axplained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities
staterment set out on page 22, the directors are responsible
far the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary 1o
enable the preparatior of financial statements that are free
fram materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
respensible for assessing the Group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosmg,
as applicable, matters related to gomg concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liguidate the Group or the parent company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
malerial misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error, and to
1ssue an auditar’s report that mcludes owr opimon.



Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect @ material misstatement when
It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasanahly be expected o influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
slatements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-
campliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our respensibilities, cutlined above, to detect
irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk

of not detecting cne resulting from error, as fraud may
nvolve deliberate concealmeant by, for example, forgery or
intentional misrepresentations, or through caliusion. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
rregularties, ncluding fraud is detailed below. However, the
primary responsibifity for the prevention and detection of
fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the
entity and management,

Our approach was as follows:

*  We obtained an understanding of the legal and reguiatory
frameworks that are applicable to the Group and parent
company and determined that the most significant are
those that relate to the reporting framework (1AS, FRS
101 and the Companies Act 2006). direct and indirect tax
compliance regulations in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates and Miscellaneous Reporting Regulations
2018, in addition, the Group has to comply with laws and
regulatians relating to domestic and overseas operations.
including money laundering regulations. health and
safety, employment law, data protection and anti-bribery
and corryption.

* We understood how the Group is compiying with those
framewarks by making enquinies of management.
internal audit and internal legal counsel to understand
how the Group maintains and communicates its policies
and procedures in these areas. We corrcborated
our enquires through cur review of board minutes.
inspection of internal audit repeorts and papers provided
to the Audit Commitiee throughout the year, review
of correspondence with relevant authonties, as well
as consideration of the results of our audit procedures
across the Group to either corrchorate cur findings or
provide contrary evidence which was fallowed up.

* Based on this understanding we designed our audit
procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and
regulations. Our procedures involved discussions with
management and internal legal counsel to assess and
understand the implications on our audit procedures.
testing of journals dentified by specific risk criteria
and tracing legal expenses ncurred back to supporting
documentation which describes the matter being
invoiced to ensure any other instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations are identified which were not
identified through our enguiries with the management.
We alsc crreulated fegal confirmatians to the external
legal counsel.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

»  Assessing the susceptibility of the Group's financial
statements to material misstatement, including how
fraud might occur by meeting with management within
various parts of the business to understand where they
considered there js susceptibility to fraud. We made
inguiries with the Head of Legal to identify and assess any
whistle blowing incidences which could have a financial
reporting impact.

+ After completing these inguiries and identifying the
Group’s employee bonus plan as a potential fraud
incentive we concluded that revenue was susceptible to
fraud via management overriding controls. This relates
to the recogmition af revenue on fixed price and capped
time and material contracts which are cpen at year end.
In addition, there 1s a risk of management override in
all revenue streams through manual journal entries and
cut-off of subcontractor costs. We also noted that the
emplovee bonus plan was based on a pre-exceptional
cost measure such that this created a risk of fraud around
the treatment and classtfication of exceptional costs.

»  To address the dentified fraud risks, we incorpaorated
data analytics into our testing of manual journals,
including segregation of duties and into our testing of
revenue recognition, with particular focus on journals
around year end. We tested specific transactions back
to source documentation to ensure that these have valid
husmess purpose. We also reviewed matartal customer
contracts to verify revenue was recognized in accordance
with the agreement, We also assessed 1tems identified by
management as exceptional costs as to whether they are
accounted for inline with the Group’s accounting policigs.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
af the financial statements 1s located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at Attps./ www. fre.org. uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purgose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respansibility
to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinicns we have formed.

Christabel Cowling (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory Auditor
Leeds, UK

2 Apnl 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the period ended 31 December 2021

2021
L Note' £m
Revenue
Fee income 4 588.8
Project costs recharged 4 88.0
Revenue 4 676.8
Personnel and direct costs 5 (46%.1)
Exceptional personne! and direct costs & (1929
Gross profit 14.8
Other agministrative expenses (96.5)
Other cperating income 71 0.1
Exceptional administrative costs 3] (8.4)
Other exceptional income o 1.5
Operating loss . 72 (88.5)
Net finance costs 8 (138.5)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (227.0)
Taxation 3 o 9 (37.1)
Loss for the financial period 3 (264.1)
Adjusted EBITDA" S 175.4

The azcompanying notes are an integral cat of the “iInanz:al stalements.

AZjusted EBITDA 1s aperat ng profit pefore mterest, taxatian, depregiat an, amertsatsn znd exceptonal rems. A reconailiat on etween aperating prafit and

sdisten EBITDA 5 provided = noie b,



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
for the peried ended 31 December 2021

202
— - _ Note _ m
Loss for the financial period (264.1)

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
N Actuarial loss recogm:ﬁed on defined benefit pension arrangeme_nts__ﬁ_i_ 21 0.6)
. : - - e

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent pericds:

jghange differenge on retranslation of net assets and results of overseas subsidiaries 02
e e 0.1
Total comprehensive loss relating to the period _(264.6}

The actompanying notes are an inteqgral cart of the { nanzial sratements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

at 31 December 2021

2021
Note! £m
Non-current ass;ts ’ B
Goodwill 10 1,035.0
Other imtangible assets 10 669.3
Property, plant and equipment n 281
Right-of-use assets 12 50.0
Deferred tax assets g 2.4
Other non-current assets _ 13
_ ) 1,786.1
Current assets
Trade receivables 4 99.4
Contract assets 316
Other current assets 15 19.7
Cash and cash eguivalents _ B ~ 183.2
_ _ _ 333.9
Total assets 3 B 2,120.0
Current liabilities
Trade and cther current liabilities 6 (222.5)
Contract liabilities 4 {30.3)
Lease liabilities 12 (9.7
Current tax liabilities . - _ B (0.8)
_ ) a (263.3)
Net current assets 70.6
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 18 (1,921.4)
Lease liabilities 12 (41.0)
Pension and other past-employment liabilities 21 (5.0)
Deferred tax liabitities 9 (139.7)
Other non-current liabilities _ B I X))
B . B - ) (2,110.5)
Total fabilities _ o N (2,373.8)
Net liabilities ) _ ) {253.8)
Equity
Share capital 19 2.3
Share premium el 3.1
Own shares reserve 18 (1.1)
Foreign currency translation reserve 19 0.1
Retained earnings N L o _ (264.2)
Total equity (253.8)

The accompanying notes are a* integral 2att of the franaal staternaents,

The financial statements were approved and authonsed for
15562 by the hoard of directors on 8 Aprd 2022,

Ken Toombs

Chief Executive Officer

PA Consulting Group Limited
Company number: 13035325



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

for the period ended 31 December 2021

Foreign
Own  currency
Share Share share transiation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss for the financial year - - - - (264.1) (264.1)
Actuarial loss recognised on detined benefit
pension arrangements 21 - - - - {0.6) {0.6)
Exchange difference gn retranslation of net assets
and resuits of overseas subsidiaries _ - - - a9.1 - 0.1
Total comprehensive loss - - - 0.1 (264.7) {264.6}
Issue of ordinary shares 19 2.3 .1 - - - 11.4
Share-based payments - - - - 6.5 0.5
Own shares acquired by the employee trust 19 - - (1.1 - - (1.1
Al 31 December 2021 B L 23 9.1 (1.1) 0.1 {264.2) (253.8)
The aczompanying nates are a« integral cart of the ¥ nancial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the period ended 31 December 2021

2021
~ _ ~ Note' Em
Operating loss 7.2 (88.5)
Add back:
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 6,72,10 53.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,722, 1 4.2
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6,72 12 6.5
Net foreign exchange differences 0.6}
Share-based payment expense 0.5
Qperating cash flows pbefore movements in working capital (24.5)
Decrease in trade and other receivables and cantract assets (19.9)
Increase in trade and other payables and contract liabilities 3 4.5
Operating cash flows before payments for taxes (35.9
Taxation paid _ _ ~ (18.6)
Net cash flows from operating activities 6.1 (58.5)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 1l 4.6)
Purchase of acquired intangible assets 10 (1.8)
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (net of cash acquired) 2512 {1,256.3)
Interest received S . ~ . g 01
Net cash flow from investing activities (1,262.5)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares 19.11 8.9
Issue of preference shares 18.25 B92.5
Drawdown of senior debt 18 650.0
Repayment of lease principat 12 (7.3)
interest paid (14.1)
Net cash from (purchase)/sale of own shares (25.9)
Staff loans issued B L 01
Net cash flow from financing activities - 1,504.2
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents L 183.1
Net fareign exchange difference _ L 0.1
183.2

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

“he accompanying nates are or integral part of the Snarcal statements,

Cash and cash equivalents include £0.2 million held by the Group’s



NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information

General information

PA Consulting Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in England. The registered office 13
10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E SDN.

PA Consulting Group is an innovation and transformation
consultancy headyuartered in London. UK,

The campany was incorporated on 20 November 2020.

The reporting period covered is from the incorporation date
of 20 November 2020 to 31 December 2021, Conseruently.
nc financial comparatives are presented.

Statement of compliance

The Group's financial statements have been prepared

in compliance with International Accounting Standards

in conformity with the reguirements of the Companies

Act 2006 as it applies to the financial statements of the Group
for the period from incorporation on 20 November 2020 to

31 December 2021

These are the first financial statements of the Group prepared
in accordance with International Accounting Standards

as issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board (1£SB).

The principat accounting policies used in preparing these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to the period presented in dealing
with items that are considered material in relation to the
financial statements.

In preparing financial statements, management develops
estimates and judgements that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities, revenues and casts, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the finzncial statements. Actuyal results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or condibions.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the
histonical cost convention, except for pension assets
and liabilities and revaluation to fair value of certain
finapcial instruments. business combination assets and
contigent censiceration.

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling,
and unless otherwise indicated, values are presented in
million pounds (Em) rounded to one decimal place.

Going concern

As required by compary legislation, the directors are
responsible for reviewing and concluding that the use of

the going concern basis of preparation is appropriate for

the Group. In consideration of this, the directors have taken
into account short and mid-term trading and cash forecasts
covering the period to June 2023. potential glokal or
economic impacts on the numbers included in those forecasts
and the availability of funding sources far the Group.

The base forecasts used as part of the review align with the
Board-approved budget and long-term plan and show
operating cashflow to be strong throughout. Consigeration
has been given to any potential downside from the current
Ukraine-Russia conflict and the increasing inflationary
enviranment in the UK (the Group's predominant gecgraphy).

The Group does not operate in either the Ukraine or Russian
territories and therefare the conflict is not expecled to create
a sigmficant disruption to the current business model. A
forecast scenaric representing a reasonable increase te costs
and prices has been prepared and reviewed to understand
the potential impact on the business from continued inflation
which demonstrated that a sufficsent amount of operational
cash headroom is available to the Group to tolerate such
increases., The Graugn's business model has meant that
historically the Group is self-funding from its operating cash
generation. Trading and cash conversion has mostly been
unaffected by the economic uncertainty in the last two vears
which has shown that this business model is robust and
flexible to adapt to external volatility.

The Grougp's fmancing is a cormbination of dett and cash an
hand, with the debt being funded from the Group's majority
investor, Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. The maturities on
these debt instruments are well beyond 12 months and
include an undrawn £50 mullion revolving credit facility which
provides additional financing capacity should it be required.
There are no financial covenants that wouid cause default
during the perod under consideration. The directors believe
these sources provide the Group with access to sufficient
longer-term funding and the ultimate lender has appropriate
hacking and headroom to support the lending for the
foreseeable future.

Having due regard to these matters. the directors are
satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources and hguidity
to contitiue to trade for the foreseeable future and conclude
that there is no materiat uncertainty around the Group's
ability to continue as a going Concern.
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2. Principal accounting policies

2.1 Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements include the results, financial
position and cash flows of PA Consutting Group Limited (the
‘Company’) and all of its subsidiary undertakings (together.
the *‘Group’). Subsidiary undertakings are those entities
controlled directly or mdirectly by the Company. Control
arises when the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity 5o as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries as consolidated
in the Group financial statements have been prepared from
the date of the acquisition of the PA Consulting Group to

31 December 2021, using consistent accounting policles.
Businesses acquired or disposed during the period are
accountad for using acquisition methad principles from. or
up to. the date control passed. intra-Group transactions and
balances are ehminated on consalidation. All subsidiaries use
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events and similar circumstances.

2.2 Employee benefit trust

Tha Group’s trust is a separately administered discretionary
trusts for the benefit of employees. The trust is funded by
toans fram the Group, with its assets mainly comprising
shares n the parent of the Group, PA Consuiting Group
Lirmited. The Group recognises the assets and liabilities

of the trust inits own accounts because. although it is
administered by independent trustees and its assets are held
separately from those of the Group, in practice the Group's
recommendations on how the assets are used for the henefit
cf emplocyees are normaily followed.

The carrying value of the Company’s ordinary shares
held by the trust is recorded as a deduction in arriving at
shareholders’ funds until such time as the shares transfer
1o employees.

Consideration received for the sale of such shares is also
recagnised in shareholders” funds, with any difference
between the proceeds from sale and the carrying value taken
ta the profit and loss reserve. No gain or loss 15 recognised
on the purchase, sale or cancellation of equity shares. The
Company's preference shares held by the trust are recorded
as a deduction against financial babilities sl amortised cost.

2.3 Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

The functicnal currency of each Group entity is the currency
of the primary economic envirecnment in which each

entity operates, The consolidated financial statements are
presented in sterling, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the relevant
functional currency of the entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated

at rates ruling at the statement of financial position date.
Such exchange differences are included in the Group inconte
statement within other administrative expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initia) transactions,

Consolidation

For the purpose of presenting cansolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of afl the
Group entities (none of which have the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a funchional currency
other than sterling are translated into sterling as follows:

» assets and liabilities within the statement of financial
position are translated at the exchange rate at the
financial pasition date

+ income and expenses within the income statement are
translated at exchange rates approximating to the rates
ruling at tne dates fransactions occurred.

The foreign exchange differences arising an retranslation
of foreign entities are recognised in the Group’s foreign
currency translation reserve.

24 Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration
received or receivabie for consulting services on each client
assignment provided during the period, inciuding expenses
and disbursements but excluding value added tax and other
similar sales taxes. Expenses and disbursements include
mileage, accommaodation, materials and subcontracior fees.

For each client assignment, the Group considers whether
there are promises in the contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be sllocated, In determining the
transaction price for each chent assignment, the Group
cansiders the effects of variable consideration. The Group
doeas not have client contracts with significant financing
components or non-cash consideration.

Revenue from time and materials contracts is recognised
as the services are provided on the basis of time worked
at an hourly or daily rate and as direct expenses and
disbursements are Incurred.



For fixed-price contracts, provided the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date, revenue is recognised over the contract term using the
percentage of completion method (input method). An input
method has been selected as there is a direct relationship
between the Group's effort, as measured by the Group's costs
incurred, and the transfer of service Lo the customer.

The stage of completion of a fixed-priced contract is
measured as the proportion that costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total costs of Lhe
contract. Estimated total costs of the contract (primarily
consultant time) are reviewed regularly end. where
necessary, revised,

if the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled in exchange for services rendered to the
client. The vanable considerat:on 15 estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the cumulative amount of revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
of the vartable consideration is subsequently resolved, The
Group'’s gain share contracts are treated under the variable
revenue model.

No revenue is recognised if thare are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due or associated
vosts. An expected loss on g contract 1s recogresed
immediately in the Group income statement.

For the majority of contracts. revenue Is recognised aver time
as services are perfarmed. The Group has client contracts
that require payments in gdvance of services perfarmed. This
results in contract hability balances, and client contracts that
require payment after services ara performed, resulting in
contract asset balances.

25 Employee benefits

251 Defined kenefit plans

The cost of providing benefits under the defined heneht
plans is determined separately for each plan using the
projected unit credit method. This attributes entitlement to
benetits to the current period (£o determine current service
cest) and to the current and prior pericds (to determine the
present value of defined benefit obligations) and is hased
on actuarial advice, When a settlement, amendment or
curtaitment occurs, the change in the present value of the
scheme liahilities and the fair value of the plan assets reflects
the gain or less that is recognised in the income statement
durnng the period in which it occurs.

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The net interest element is determined by multiplying the
net defined benefit llabilty. by the discount rate at the start
of the period, and taking inte account any changes in the
net defined benefit hakbility during the period as a result

of contribution and benefit payments, The net interast is
recognised in profit or i0ss as other finance revenue or cost.

Rerneasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
affect of the asset ceiling and the return on the net defined
benefit liahility (excluding amounts included in net inferest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income
in the period In which they ccour, Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent periods.

The defined net benefit pension asset or llabifity in the
statement of financial position comprises the total for each
plan of the present value of the defined benefit obligation,
{using a discount rate based on high-quality corporate
bonds) less the fair value of plan assets out of which the
abligations are tc be settled directly. Fair value is basea
on market price information and in the case of quoted
securities, is the published bid price. The value of 2 net
pension benefit asset is limited to the amount that may be
recovered either through reduced contributions or agreed
refunds from the scheme.

2.5.2 Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are
recognised in the income statement in the period in which
they become payable.

253 Deferred employee remuneration

An element of all employee remuneration is contingent upon
Group and personal performance.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for deferred
employee remuneration based on a formula that takes into
consideration the Group's EBITDA after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises deferred employee remuneration
liahilities and expenses where there is a past practice

that has created a constructive cbligation or thereis a
contractual obligation.

254 Short-term compensated absences

The Group recognises the expected cost ¢f accumuiating
compensated absences, primarily annual leave, when the
employees render service that increases their entitlement to
future compensated absences.
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2.6 Research and development

Researrh expenditurn 1s written off to the Income statement
n the pariod in which itis incurred, Developmant expenditure
Is written off in the same way. unless the directors are
satisfied that it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits attributable to the intangible asset created will

flow to the Group and the cost of the intangible asset can

lze measured reliably. Where these criteria are met, the
expenditure is deferred and amortised over the period during
which the Group 1s expected fo benefit.

2.7 Leases

Definition of a lease

At inception of a contract. the Group assesses whether

a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract I1s, or contains.
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time 1n exchange

for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
labirty at the lease commencement date.

2.7.1 Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset s initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at, or before, the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs ta distnanile and remove the underlying assel, or to
restare the underlying asset, or the site on which it s located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subseguently depreciated using

the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the usefu! life of the right-of-use
asset, or the end of the lease term, The estimated useful fives
are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment, In addition, the right-of-use asset 1s periodically
reduced by iImpairment losses, tf any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the feasa Hability.

2.7.2 Lease liability

The lease liability s initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments for the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted tsing the interest
rate implicit iz the fease, or if that rate cannet be readily
determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments comgprise fixed payments, variable
payments dependent on an index or a rate and amounts
expected to be paid under a residual value guarantee,

The lease term is from the commencement date through to
the end of the contracted initial lease duration except where
the Group has an option to terminate or extend the term
and is reasonably certain to exercise that option. In this case
the lease term will e restricted to the termination date or
extended o inciude the extension period.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a madification, a change in the fease term. a change
in the lease payments (e.g. from resetting an index or rate).
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

2.7.3 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption and the leases of low-value assets recognition
exemption. As a result, the Grolip recognises lease payments
on short-term leases {leases expirng within 12 months of
the commencement date) and leases of low-value assets
(underlying asset vaive less than $5,000) on a strarght-hine
basis over the lease term.

2.8 Share-based payments

Equity-settlied share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services to the Group are measured
at the far value of the equity mstruments at the grant data,
The fair value excludes the effect of service ang non-market-
based vesting conditions.

Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note
20. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straightline basis over the vesting pericd (the expense being
recorded within the Group’s employment costs together
with a corresponding increase in reserves), hased on the
Group's estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will eventuaily vest. At each reporting date, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest as a result of the effect of service or non-market-hased
vesting conditions, The impact af the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised it employment costs in the
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense refiects

the revised sstimate, with 2 corresponding adjustment

Lo reservas.



Nc expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest due to service or non-market based conditions not
heing met.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than empioyees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services receved, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably. in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the eguity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the good, or the
counterparty renders the service.

For cash-settied share-based payments, the fair value

is expensed over the period until the vesting date with
recognition of a corresponding liability. The faw value 1s
initially determined at the grant date but at each subseguent
reporting date until the Liability 15 settied. and at the date of
settlement. the fair value of the liability is remeasured, with
any changes in fair value recognised in employment costs in
the profit or loss tor the year.

29 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate apphcable.

210 Alternative Performance Measure

The directors believe that certain adjusted financial measures
provide additional useful information for shareholders on the
underlying performance of the business to aid comparability
between reporting periods. These adjusted measures remove
items which by virtue of their size or nature distort the
visibility of the continuing business performance.

The directors use Fee income {a subset of revenue) and
adiusted EBITDA as their primary internal income statement
performance measures, In the current year due to the one-off
exceptional distribution made by the Group's EBT an adjusted
operating cashflow measure 1s also presented to better

reflect the true operating cashflows af the business, {Details
are includad i note 63,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21 Tax

The tax charge comprises current tax payable and
deferred tax,

2.11.1  Current tax

The current tax charge represents an estimate of the
amounts payable to tax authorities in respect of the Group's
taxable profits and is hased on an interpretation of existing
tax laws. Taxable profit differs from profit hefore tax as
reported in the Group income statement as it excludes
certain items of income and expense that are taxabie or
deductible in other years ar are never taxabie or dedyctible.

2.11.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the batance sheet liability
methaod, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

« Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
the directors consider that it is probable that there will
he suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal
of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

« Provision is made for deferred tax that would arise
on remittance of the retained earnings of overseas
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures only to the
extent that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have
been accrued as recelvable.

+ Deferrad tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in
which tirming differences reverse. based on tax rates and
laws enacted. or substantively enacted, at the balance
sneel date.

+  Deferred tax assets and tiabilities are offset against each
other where there is a fegally enforceable right to set off
current taxation assets against current taxation liabilities
and it 1s the mtention to settie these on a net hasis.
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2.2 Business combinations and goodwil)

Business combinations are accounted for by applying
the acquisition method.

The cost of a business combination is measured as
the agaregate of the consideration transferred,
which 1s measured at acquisition date fair value.
Acguisition-related costs are expensed as incurred
and included mn exceptional 'tems.

Any contingent consideration to he transferred by the
acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date as a financial lability. Contingent consideration is
measured at fair vaiue at each reporting date with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

On acquisitian of a business., fair values are attrihuted to the
identifiable assets, liabiities and contingent liabilities unless
the fair value cannot be measured reliably, in which case,
the value s incorporated in gooadwill. Where the fair value of
contingent liabilities cannot be reliably measured. they are
disclosed on the same hasis as other contingent liabihties.

Goodwiil arising on an acquisition of a business is initially
measured at cost. being the difference between the fair value
of the consideration paid and the fair value of the assets

and liahilities acquired, After imitial recagnition. goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumuiated iImpairment losses.
The Graup has one cash-generating unit (CaU3, consultancy.
and goodwill is allocated to that CGU for imparment testing.
Goodwill s assessed annually for impairment.

213 intangible assets

intangible assets include trade name, customer relationships.

capitalised development costs and investment in new
software,

The trade name and customer relationships agreements
were acquired as part of the Group’s acquisition and are
classified separately from goodwill where the fair vaiue can
e measured reliably on intial recognition, subject to the
constraint that unless the asset has a readily ascertainable
market vaiue. the fair value is imited to an amaount that
does not create or increase negative goodwill arising on
the acquisition.

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are
measured on initial recognition at cost and amaortised over
the peniod during which the Group is expected to benefit,

Software costs acguired as part of the Group’s acquisition
represent the net book value on acquisition of costs of
development by an external company, The costs capitabsad
during the period for investment in new software represent
costs of development by an external company during the
neriod, Software costs are amortised over a useful hfe of
three years,

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred, An internafly-
generated intangible asset arising from development (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if. and only if, ail of the following conditions have
been demonstrated;

+ the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
s¢ that it will be available for use or sale

+ theintention to complete the intangibie asset and use or
sell it

» the ability to use or sell the intangible asset

+  how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic henefits

» the avalahility of adeguate technical. financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or selt
the intangible asset

+ the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributabie to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition critena listed above. Where no inteinally
generated intangible asset can be recognised. development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the periad in
which it 1s incurred.

Subseguent to mitial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost {ess accumulated
amertisation and accumulated impairment losses. on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
The useful life of the internal development costs capitalised
in the period has been estimated as three years and
amortisation will begin when the assets are in use,



Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The following usefut econcmic
livas arc applied:

Asset category Useful economic life

Software 3 years
Trademarks 20 years
Customer relationships 9to 11 years

Internal development costs 3 years

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for
impairment annuaily.

214 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Cost comprises purchase Lrice after discounts
and rehates, plus all directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use. Finance costs
are not capitatised and are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation 15 calcuiated so as to write off the cost, less
estimated residual value. on a straight-line basis over the
expected usetul econamic ives of the assets concerned,
Depreciation is charged on assets from the date in which
they are brought intc use. The following useful economic
lives are applied:

Asset category Useful economic iife

Computer eguipment 2to 5 years

Office furniture, equipment 210 10 years

Freehold property 10 to 50 years

the remaining period of lease
uniess the economic life of
the asset is determined to be
less than that of the Jease

Leasehold improvements

The residual vaiues, useful lives and methods of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
finarcial year end and adjusted prospectwely. if appropriate.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
highly liquid deposits with a maturity of three months or less
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

216 Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange
for services transterred to the customer. if the Group
performs services for a customer before the customer pays
consideraticn or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recogmised for the earned consideration.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount

of consideration that is unconditional (t.e. only the
passage of time Is required before payment of the
consideration is due) and the customer has been billed for
that consideration, Refer to accounting policies of financial
assetsn section 2.17.2 Financial assets — initial recognition
and subseguent measurement,

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligaticn to transfer services to

a customer for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers
services to the customer, a contract ligbility 15 recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever
is eariier). Contract hab/ities are recognised as revenus
when the Group satisfies its performance obligation under
the contract.

217 Financial instruments

2.17.1 Classification

The Group’s financial mstruments are classified under the
following categories;

+  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through cther comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), ahd

+ those {o be measured af amortised cost.
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The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

For an asset to be measured at amartised cost. it needs to
give rise 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest ¢(SPPI on the principal amount outstandihg.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair vaiue through profit or Ioss
(F¥TPL) irrespective of the business model.

Financial iiahilities are classified as measured at amartised
cost or (FVTPL). A financial liability 1s classified as at FVTPL

if itis classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial habslities
al FVTPL are measured at fair value, and net gains and

losses, including any interest expense, are recognised In profit
or loss. Other financial habilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cast using the effective interest method.

2.17.2 Financial assets

Initial recognition

The Group measures financial assets mitially at fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not classified as at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried a3t FVTPL are
expensed In prafit or loss,

Subseguent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured Using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and
are subject to impairment, Gains and losses are recoansed
i profit or 1oss when the asset is derecognised, madified or
impaired. The Group’s financizl assets at amortised

cost include trade receivables, and loan to an associate

and lpan to a director included under cther nen-current
financiat assets.

For assets measured at farr value, gans ant iosses will

either be recorded in profit or loss, or other comprehensive
income depending on the nature of the asset and the Group’s
clection at recognition:

* fornvestments in debt instruments, this will depend on
the business model in which the investment is held

*  forinvestmanis in equity instruments, this will depend on
whether the Company has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition tc account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income, otherwise gams and lpsses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial assel (or. where applicable, a part of 2 financial
asset or part of 2 group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (L.e. ramoved from the Group's
consalidated statement of financial position) when:

»  the nights to receive cash fiows from the asset have
expired. or

+ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows tram the asset, or has assumed an obiigation
to pay the received cash flows in fult without,
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of tha asset, ar

(b} the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
nas transferred contral of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, 1f evaluates if, and to what extent. it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially al)
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recogrse the transferred
asset to the extent of its continuing involvernent. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated hability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligaticns that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvermnent that takes the form of a guarantes
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
originai carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised
cost ang fair value through atner comprehensive ingome,
The impairment methodelogy applied depends on whether
there has been a significant mcrease in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets only, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the recetvables.

The Group considers & financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due, However, 1n
certain cases, the Group may also cansider a financial

asset to e in default when Internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
cantractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset

is weitten off when there 1s no reasondble expoctation of
recavering the contractual cash flows,



2.17.3 Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair vaiue
and. i the case of loans and barrowmgs and payables,

net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s
inancial liabilittes include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings including lease liabilities, the Group's issued
preference shares, contingent consideration and derivative
financial instruments.

Subseguent measurement

The Group’s financial liabilities are mainly classified as
measured at amortised cost.

After inttial recagmition, these hahilibies are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the IR method. Gains

and losses are recognised in grofit or loss when the liabllities
are derecogmised, as well as through the EIR amaornsation
process. Amortised cost s calculated by taking inte account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integra!l part of the EIR.

The EIR amortisation 1s includad as finance costs in the
statement of profit or Joss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are those which are incurred
far the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, This
category also includes dgervative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging mstruments m hedge relationships. See section
2.17.4 Derivative instruments.

Derecognition

A financial iabihty is derecognised when the obligation under
the liahility 15 discharged. cancelled or expires.,

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
tarms of an existing habifity are substantalty maodified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecogmtion
of the original liability and the recognition of a new hiability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.17.4  Derivative instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequentiy
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The accounting for subseguent changes in farr

value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the natura of the item being
hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated (cash
fliow hedge, fair value hedge or hedges of a net investment 1n
& foreign operation).

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For those derivatives to be designated as a hedging
instrument, the Group documents at the inception of the
hedging transaction the economic relationship between the
hedging instrument and hedged item, including whether the
hedging instrument 1s expected to offset changes in cash flows
of hedged items. The Group decuments its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking varicus hedge
transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that
does not qualify for hedge accounting are recegnised
immediately in prafit or loss. The movement in the Group's
forward currency contracts are recognised in administrative
expenses, and the movement on the interest rate swap 1s
recognised in finance income.

2.8 Provisions for liabilities

The Group recognises a provision when it has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outfiow of economic henefit will be required
to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the statement of financial position date,

2.19 Share capital

tssued share capital s classitied as equity instruments
or financial abiiities according to the subistance of the
contractual arrangement entered into.

2.19.1  Preference shares

The liability for the preference shares arises because
their rights oblige the Company to pay accrued dividends
(12 par cent) and capital in certain events. As a result, the
preference shares are recorded as financ:al habilities.

2.19.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded as the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.,
with the nominal value of the instrument c¢redited to share
capital and the excess to the share premium account,

All classes of ordinary shares of the Company meet the
definrtion of an equity instrument and are recorded as such.
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2.20  Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received. Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic tasis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

2.2 New and amended standards
and interpretations

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRS
Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.
They are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracls

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
(Amendments to IAS 1)

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framewerk
inIFRS 3

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended
Use {Amendments to IAS 16}

Onerous Contracts ~ Costs of Fuifilling a Contract
{Amendments to 1AS 37)

Financial Instruments - Fees in the "10 per cent’ test for

derecagnition of financial liahilities
(Amendments 10 IFRS @)

Taxation in fair value measurements
(Amendrments to 145 41)

Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to
IAS 8)

Disclosure of accounting policies (Ameandments to 1AS 1
and IFRS Praclice Statement 23

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from
a single transaction (Amendments to 1AS 12).



3. Critical accounting judgements
and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting policies that
affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The Group bases its estimates and judgements on
historical experience and other factors deemed reasonable
under the circumstances, including any expectations of future
events. Actual results may differ from these estirmates, The
astimates and judgements considered to be significant are
detalled below.

31 Revenue from fixed price contracts

Revenue from fixed price contracts i1s recagnised by reference
to management’s judgement of the stage of completion

of the contract at the end of the reporting period and
includes an estimate of the costs tc complete the contract.
Performance over the remaining contract term may result

in revised estimates of turnover and costs with a cumulative
adjustment to revehue and vrofit reparted in future periods.
Revenue recognised from fixed price contracts is disclosed

in note 4.

3.2 Leases

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and
termination options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-canceliable
term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease if it is reasonabily certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination opticns. In evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise an option, the Group considers
the factors thal create an economic incentive to exercise.

NOTES TC ThE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group included the renewal period as part of the lease
term for property leases with shorter non-cancellable pericds
(up to 10 years) in the lacations contributing a significant
portion of the Group’s performance. Renewal periods were
not included for leases in other geographical locations except
where the Group’s real estate team identify the local property
market as restricted.

The Group typically leases motor vehicles far less than five
years and hence has not included any renewal options within
the lease term.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

Where the Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in 1ts leases, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure the related lease habilities, Establishing

an appropriate IBR requires estimation when no observable
rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the specific tarms and conditions of the iease,

The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market risk-free rates) as the basis and adjusts these to
take into consideration entity-specific status (such as the
subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

The impact of applying these estimates is included in the
lease values included in role 12,

33 Impairment of intangible assets

The Group has a significant level of intangible assets,
including goodwill. Goodwill requires annual impairment
testing whereas the intangible assets with a limited life,
trademark and customer relationships. only need to be
formally assessed If indicators of impairment are dentified.

Assessing the appropriateness of the carrying value is based
on estimating the value in use of intangible assets which

is determined from reference to the Group’s enterprise
value and is dependent on assumptions of future trading
growth, profitability and cash flows. Details of the Group’s
impairment review are included in note 10,
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3.4 Share-based payments

Equity-settled sharc awards are recognised as an expensea
hased on their farr value at date of grant. The fair value of
equity-settied awards is estimated through the use of an
option pricing model which requires inputs such as the share
price, risk-free interest rate, expected dividends, expected
volatility and the expected option life. Whilst most of

these inputs can be based o a certain extent on historical
factual data for shares that are freely traded, as the Group's
Management Equity Plan shares are not traded, alternative
methods which are more judgemental are required to obtain
certain of the input vatues. the most significant being the
share price/equity value {derived from the Group's deemed
snterprise value) and volatility,

The Group's equity value has been assessed using the
recent acquisition price as an chservable market transaction
accurring in close proximity to the award grant date. In
subseguent years an estimation of equity value will be
derived using third party expert valuations which rely

on inputs such as management’s perfermance forecasts

and acplication of an appropriate discount facter, If these
forecasts were overly aggressive ar prudent, the resulting
fair value and related share-based payment charge to be
recognised could be higher or lower.

As there is insufficient listorical share price data to calculate
an appropnate company-speaific volatility, an estimation,
LsINgG a selection of comparable listed companues, is reguired.
The choice of companies included and methodology adopted
to calculate volatility can influence the volatility outcomes
and n turn, the resulting far value and related charge,

The resulting cost recognised in profit/(lass) is based an
applying the fair value to the number of awards expoected
to vest. As the only performance criteria is continued
employment, the vesting judgement applied is in relation to
the level of leavers (and therefore award fapses) expected
during the vesting period. Should the level of lapses he
different from the initial estimated level, the charge baoked
will be adjusted to reflect the actual lapse level which may
lead to a hrgher or lower charge.

The input values used in the fair value model and resulting
income statement charge are included in note 20.

3.5 Business Combinations and goodwill

On the acquisition of a husiness, fair values are attributed to
the identifiable assets and labilities and contingent liabilities
unless the fair value cannot be measured refiably, in which
case the value 1s subsumed into goodwill,

Attributing far values is a key judgement. Goodwill 1s the
difference hetween the fair value of the consideration and the
fair vaiue of net assets acguired. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or pay for a liability in an
orderly transaction at the date of acguisition. The price may
he directly abservable but, in most cases. s estimated using
valuation technigues. Judgement is reguired in selecting an
appropriate valuation methodology depending con the asset
igentified,

The basis for valuation is normally a management forecast
of performance and cashflow, excluding any company-
specific deal synergies, which inherently contain a level of
subjectivity and selection and application of an appropriate
discount rate to determine the present value of the stream
of earnings. Further jucigements have been applied for
specific identified intangible assets, including for custamer
relationshups, an estimation of expected growth and attrition;
rates and for trade name, selection of an appropriate royalty
rate. Intangible asset vaiues resulting from applying these
dgements are included in note 25,



4. Revenue from contracts with customers

4.1 Disaggregation of revenue

All revenue is derived fram the proviston of consulting services:

NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021

Project costs

Cansuitant fees recharged Total
o fm £m Em
Geographical markets, based on the billing location of the client
UK 4523 79.9 5322
Americas 72.7 4.2 76.9
Scandinavia 46.7 2.9 49.6
Europe 15.5 0.4 15.9
Asia Pacific o . B 16 0.6 2.2
Total revenue from contracts with customers _ 588.8 88.0 676.8
Contract duration
One year or less 392.4 47.2 439.6
Qver one year B _ _ ) 166.4 40.8 237.2
588.8 88.0 676.8

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from time and matenals, fixed-price and mitestone contracts of £674.8 mullion was recognised on the kasis of ime
worked and expensas incurred, For time and materials contracts, revenue directly reflects time worked and expenses incurred;
for freed-price and milestone contracts, revenue was recognised through tne percentage completion method using the time

worked and expenses incurred as a prapuartion of the estamated total costs of the contract. Gan share contract revenue of

£2.0 milion was recognised at @ point i ime,
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4.2 Trade receivables and other contract balances

The fnllowing table provicles mifermation about receivables. contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers. Contract assets relate to the Group's rights to consideration for werk completed but not hilled at the reporting
date, Contract liabilities relate Lo advance consideration received from customers,

2021
o B Note £m
Trade receivables 421 99.4
Contract assets 422 316
Contract liabilities - s _ 423 (30.3)

4.2.1 Trade receivables

Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 te 90 days. in 2021, £0.7 million was recognised as
provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

2021 e

Gross Provision for
carrying expected
amount credit losses

- , ; ] Em _Em
Current (not past due) 80.8 -
1-30 days past due 149 -
31-60 days past due 2.5 -
61-90 days past due 0.6 -
91-180 days past due 0.6 -
More than 180 days past due - -
Credit-impaired trade receivables B ) e e 6.7 _©7n
o _ o L 1001 0.7
o ) - o ) - 202_1
Movement on expected credit loss on trade receivables o - Em
Acquired on subsidiary acquisition 2.1
Net remeasurement of expected credit loss allowance 0.8
Amounts written off _ o 0.6

At 31 December ~ ] o 0.7
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4,2.2 Contract assets

2021

o i £m

Gross carrying amount 21.7
Expected credit loss allowance L } (0.1
Net contract asset N ~ 316
2021

Movement on contract assets ) L L ~_Em
Acquired on subsidiary acquisition 42.5
Amounts billed in the period (42.0)
Increases as a result of services petformed but not invoiced during the period 213
Movement in provision and amounts written off in the period ) _ o _{0.2)
At 31 December 316

The amounts written off in the period relate to changes in estimates of the stage of campletion of fixed price projects and not
customer default. This is therefore not representative of the expected credit Josses on contract assets. As at 31 December.
contract assets include £19.7 million unbilled accounts recevabie. The right to payment for the unbilled accounts receivable is
condittonal only on the passage of hime.

472.3 Contract liabilities

Movement on contract liabilities 2(;2;
Acquired on subsidiary acquisition (28.3)
Increases due to inveicing, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the period (29.4)
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance acquired on subsidiary acquisition _ 274
At 31 December o o _(30.3)

4.3 Contracted performance obligations

The Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient provided by IFRS 15 paragraph 121 to not disciose:

a. performance obiigations that are part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less: and

b. performance obligations from contracts where the Group has the right to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group's performance completed to date.

In the directers’ opinion the performance obligations that do not meet either of the practical expedient criteria are not material
and are therefore not disclosed.
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5. Employee information

5.1 Employee numbers

The average monthly number of peaple empioyed by the Groug during the period was:

2o
i} ~ Number
Consultants 2,907
Support B 646
Total average number of employees 3,553
5.2 Employee remuneration
The aggregate remuneration of these persans was:
2021
£m
Wages and salaries (210.2)
Deferred remuneration (111.8)
Sociat security costs (24.5)
Contributions to defined contribution pension arrangements (15.8)
Share-based payment charge {0.5)
Exceplional distribution by employee benefit trust (188.4)
Other payroll costs ) 8.4
Tatal aggregate employee benefits . (569.6)
53 Directors’ emoluments in respect of qualifying services
2021
£m
Directors
Aggregate emoluments 3.5
Directors accruing benefits under defined benefit schemes -
Directors in the defined contribution scheme _ 2
Highest paid director
15

Aggregate emoluments

No director exercised any options in any shares of the company or any other group undertaking of the company during the period.
No director received shares of the company or any other group undertaking of the company curing the period in respect of

qualifying services.



6. Alternative performance measures

As well as GAAP measures, the directors use certain
adjusted financial measures to assess the performance

of the business, the primary measures being EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA. The directors eheve that adjusted EBITDA
provides additional useful information for sharehclders on
the underlying performance of the business as this measure
is consistent with how the underlying business performance
is measured internally. The directors view adjusted ESITDA as
the best representation of the business’ normal. continuing
business performance by seeking to remove unusual items
of Income or expense which are judged to be one-off or
non-tradng in nature or oy quantum, This provides
management with increased comparability of performance
between reporting periods.

NOFES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These items are disclosed as exceptional in the Group's
income statement if by virtue of their size or nature they
distort the underlying trading perfarmance.

2001 -

Adjustments Adjusted

. £m £m £m

Group operating {loss)/profit (B8.5) 189.8 111.3

Amartisation of other intangible assets 534 - 53.4

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4.2 - 4.2
Depreciation of right of use assets _ ~ ) 6.5 - ] 6.5

{24.9) 199.8 1754

EBITDA
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The adjustments relate to the following items 2021
' - Personnel and Administrative Other Total
direct costs costs income adjustment
L ] - Note Em ) £m £m £m
Exceptional distribution by employee benefit trust ] (188.4) - - (188.4)
Acquisition reiated Costs b (2.9 (7.5 - {10.0)
Business closure costs C (1.5 (0.5) - (1.5)
Contingent income d - . 15 1.5
Pension advisor fees e - 0.4) - 0.4)
Cther costs (0.5} - - 0.5}
Share-based payment charge ) _ o f (0.5) - - (0.5)
Total adjusting items B ) (192.9) (8.4) 1.5 (199.8)

During the period the Group incurred certain costs and received certain income that the directors believe are of an exceptional
nature and guantum and should e separately disclosed.

This is the cost for the employee henefit trust chstribadtion of cash and shares in the Group Lo employees.

These casts comprise stamp duty, professional fees, consideration deemed to be employment costs and staff retention costs.
These costs relate to the closure of businesses driven by the Group simpiification initiative in the period,

This income relatas to contingent events concluded after the dispesal of PA Defense inc m 2020,

These costs were professianal fees associated with the buy-out of the UK closed defined henetit scheme.

mmooon oo

The share-based payment charge 1s in relation to the Group’s Management Equity Plan (see note 20 for details).

6.1 Alternative cash flow measure

in the period ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s net operating cash outflow included one-off items Incurred after the
PA Consulting Group acquisition which the directors regard as related to the transaction rather than normal operating cash
flows and therefore present an adjusted operating cash flaw measure to show the position if these items were removed,

202
- e Note Em
Net cash fiows from operating activities (58.5)
Adjustments
Exceptional distribution by employee benefit trust a 188.4
Stamp duty cost related to acquisition ) B b 79
Adjusted net cash flows from operating activities 137.8

a. The emnpioyee benefit trust (EBT) facllitates the buying and selling of PA shares and at the point of Carlyle’s exit held a
significant share holding. As a result, the EBT itsalf received proceeds for tts shares neld at the pomt of Carlyle’s exit.
The EBT made a discretionary distribution to PA people from these proceeds.

b. This cost represents the stamp duty incurred whiist acquiring the shares in PA Consulting Group Holdings Limited as part
of the acquisiion.



7. Income and expenses

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

71 Other operating income

2021
Rental income from property sub-leases . _0a
7.2 Included in operating loss

2021
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting): _ _Note £m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment N 4.2
Depreciation of right of use assets ~ 12 6.5
Total depreciation charge - 77 10.7
Amortisation of intangible assets 10 53.4
Charges in relation to short-term leases and lease of low value assets 0.5
Foreign currency differences 0.3
Government grant income (1.1
R&D expanditure B B 8.2
7.3 Auditor’s remuneration

202
— . £000
Fees payabie to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 271
Fees payable to the Group's auditor for other services:
Audit of the accounts of subsidiaries 280

11

Qther assurance services

included in audit of the Hnancial statements is £60,000 relating to the Company.
The auditor of PA Consulting Group Limited s Ernst & Young LLP.

51



52

8. Net finahce costs

2021
Note . £m

Finance income
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents B 01
B o _ 0.1

Finance costs

Preference shares (net of shares held by the Group) (115.5)
Senior debt interest (21.3)
Discounting impact of lease liabilities 12 (1.7
interest on defined benefit pension arrangement liabilities 21 (0.1)
L _ (138.6)
{138.5)

Net finance costs
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9. Tax
9. Tax on Loss on ordinary activities
2021
. £m
Current tax
United Kingdom
UK corporation tax at 19% (12.7)
UK corporation tax (12.7)
Foreign tax
Corporation taxes (4.4)
Foreign tax_ ~ (4.4)
Total current tax charge o ~ B (17.1)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences i (20.0)
Total deferred tax o {20.0)
(37.1)

Total tax charge on loss on ordinary activities
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9.2 Factors affecting current tax credit

The Group’s tntal tax charge 1s L3711, The three main items affecting this charge are:

1. interest payable preference shares which is not tax-deductible
. the enacted change of tax rate in the UK and the resultant changes on deferred tax
a1, the distribution by the employee benefit trust which is not deductible for tax purposes.

The Group's total tax charge 1s higher than the standard rate of UK corporation tax for the period, 19 per cent,
The differences are explained below.

2021
~ Em
Loss on erdinary activities before taxation (227.0)
Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard corporation tax in the UK of 19 per cent 43.1
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible fer tax purposes .10
Non-deductible preference share interest (17.5)
Employee benefit trust distribution (36.5)
Cverseas losses arising in the period not relievable against current tax 0.1)
Use of tax losses which are relievable against current tax 0.4
Effect of change of tax rate on deferred tax asset (25.9)
Differential 0on gverseas tax rates . L o L (0.5
_ Total tax charge for the period o o I (37.1)
The Frinance Arct 2016 included legistation to reduce the an increase of UK corporation tax rate frem 19 per cent
main rate of UK corporation tax from 20 per cent to to 25 per cent with effect from 1 Aprif 2023 and this was
19 per cent from 1 Aprit 2017 and to 17 per cent from substantively enacted by the statement of financial positton
1 April 2020. The rate reduction to 17 per cent was date and therefore included m these financial statements.
subsequently reversed by the Financas Act 2020, such that Tempaorary differences have been remeasured using the
the main rate of UK corporation tax from 1 Apnl 2021 enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the

remains at 18 per cent. The Finance Act 2021 confirmed liability is settled or the asset realisad.
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9.3 Deferred tax

The major Jeferred tax (habilities)/assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current finapcial
period are:

Deferred Property,
employee Pensicn Intangibie plant and
remuneration costs  Tax losses assets Provisions machinery Total
‘ ) £m £m £m Em £m £m Em
Acquired on subsidiary acquisition
(Charged)/credited
- recognised on business combination 8.9 0.5 15.1 (144.0) 0.5 2.5 (117.5)
- to profit or loss {excluding impact of .
remeasurement of deferred tax) (1.5 c1 (2.6) 10.6 0.1 C.0) 59
- to profit or lass: impact of
remeasurement of deferred tax - - 35 (Z9.4) - - {25.9)
- foreign exchange and other movements 0.2 - - - - - 0.2
At 31 Decembier 2021 7.6 0.6 16.0 (162.8) 0.6) 1.9 (137.3)

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The foliowing 1s the

analysis of the deferred tax balances after offset; 2021
_____ _ _ _ - _ _ £m
Deferred tax assets 2.4
Deferred tax liabilities B o B (139.7)

(137.3)

9.4 Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in relation to continuing operations have not been recognised in respect of the following items because
it is not probanie that future taxable profits wil he availdable against which the Group can utilise the benefits In the relevant
locations:

Tax lpsses ) ) . —
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10. Intangible assets

Goodwilt Other intangible assets
Capitalised Other
Customer development intangible assets
Software  Trademarks relationships costs total
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Acquired on subsidiary acquisitions 25 1,035.0 1.1 164.2 555.6 - 720.9
Additions - 0.4 - - 14 1.8
Disposals - (0.2} - - - 0.2)
At 31 December 2021 _ 1,035.0 13 164.2 555.6 1.4 7225
Accumulated amortisation
Disposals 0.2 - - - 0.2
Charge for the year L 7.2 - 0.8) (6.8) (45.8) - (53.4)
At 31 December 2021 o - {0.6) _ (68 (45.8) - (53.2)
Net book amount )
At 31 December 2021 B 1,035.0 0.7 _ 1574 509.8 1.4 669.3




The software intangible asset is the Group's investment in

a new enterprise rescurce planning system that replaced the
Group's core legacy back offica systems. The asset is being
armortised over g useful tife of three years.

Trademarks represent the value of the royalty streams
associated with the PA brand, and are being amortised
evenly over the directors' estimate of their useful economic
life of 20 years.

Customar relationships represent the acguired customer base
that is expected to continue to support the business. These
customer relationships are being amortised over their useful
economic lives of nine ta 11 years depending on the sector

in which the customer belongs. These useful economic kves
represent the period over which the Group is expected to
benefit frorn the relationships.

The goodwill intangible asset relates entirely to acquired
goodwill through business combinations and is tested for
impairment whenever there is an indication of impairment
and at least annuaily.

See note 25 for details of intangibies acquired In the period.

Impairment of goodwill

For amparment testing, goodwill and other contributing
assets are allocated to the consultancy CGU to caiculate the
catrying value of the consultancy CGU.

During the period impairment tosses of £nil and impairment
reversals of £nil were recognisad.

The recoverable ameount is the higher of fair value less

casts of disposal and value in use, The recoverable amount
of the consultancy CGU as at December 2021, has been
determined based on the value in use calculation using cash
flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior
management Cavering a five-year penod. These busiess
plans and forecasts include management’s most recent view
of medium-term trading prospects. The post-tax discount
rate applied (o cash flow projections 1s 11.0 per cent and
cash flows beyand thes period are extrapolated using a

1.5 per cent growth rate that is within the range ¢f the
long-term average growth rate for the consultancy mdustry.
110 2 per cent.

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The level of impairment is predominantly dependent upon
judgement used in arriving at future growth rates and the
discount rates applied to cash flow projections. The impact
on the impairment charge of applying 2 reasonably possible
change in assumptions to increases in revenue and cost of
sales in the five-year business plan. growth rates used in

the five-year business plans and the pre-tax discount rates
wolld not lead to an incremental impairment charge.

The calcutation of value in use is most sensitive to the
fallowing assumptions:

* revenue and cost of sales
» discount rates
*  growth rates.

Revenue and cost of sales are based on past experiences
and historical knowlecdge of the CGU. It was built on a

highly detailed hottom-up approach, and examples of
considerations that were taken into account are in respect of
variations in growth by gecgraphy and the Group continually
growing in scale.

Discount rates represent the current market assessment of
the risks specific to tha CGU, taking inte consideration the
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying
assets that have not been incorporated in the cash flow
estimates. The discount rate caiculation 1s based on the
specific circumstances of the Group and is derived from

its weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACCT
takes into account both debt and equity. The cost of

equity is derived from the expected return on investment
by the Group's Investors. The cost of debt 15 based on the
interest-bearng borrowings the Group 1s obliged 1o service.
Segment-specific Nsk 1s incorporated by applying individual
beta faclors, The beta factors are evaluated annually based
on publicly available market data. Adjustments to the
discount rate are made 1o factor in the specific amount and
timing of the future tax flows in arder to reflect a pre-tax
discount rate.

Growth rate estimates are based on management’s forecast
using a third-party valuation model.
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11. Property, plant and equipment

Qffice
Short furniture
Freehold leasehcld equipment
land and and and Computer
buildings property rmachinery equipment Total
Note £m £m Em £m £m
Cost
On acquisition 25 16.4 6.3 2.4 2.5 276
Effects of movements in exchange rates - 0.1 - 0.1 0.2
Additions at cost ) 0.3 0.3 1.0 3.0 4.6
At 31 December 202t - 16.7 67 34 5.6 324
Accumulated amortisation
Effect in movement in exchange rates - 0.0 - 0.1
Charge for the period 7 7.2 (0.9 .7 (0.6) (2.0) (4.2
At 31 December 2021 0.9 (0.8) (0.6) (2.0) 4.3
Net bookgmount - B o ~ B
At 31 December 2621 15.8 58 28 3.6 28.1




12. Leases

Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for varigus items of property,
vehicies and other equipment used inits operations, Leases
of property generally have lease terms between two and

15 years, while motor vefcles and other equipment generally
have lease terms between three and five years. The Group's
obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title

to the leased assets. Generally, the Group is restricted frem
assigning and sub-leasing the leased assets. Thera are several
lease contracts that include extension and termination
ophions and variakle tease payments, which are further
discussed below.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group also has certain leases of office space with tease
terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment
with fow value. The Group applies the ‘short-lesm lease’
and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for
these laases.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the period are as follows:

Property  Motor vehicles Tota!

B Naote Em £m £m

On acquisition 25 54.4 0.5 54.9
Additions 14 c.4 1.8
Depreciation charged in period 72 6.3) 0.2) (6.5)
Effects of movements in exchange rates (0.2) - (0.2}
As at 31 December 2021 49.3 0.7 50.0
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The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabdities and the movements during the periad are as follows:

Property  Maotor vehicles Total
L B Note £m B £m £m
On acquisition (54.4) 0.5 (54.9)
Additions (1.4> (0.4 (1.8
Interest charged 8 [eW))] - Qan
Payments made 7.1 0.2 7.3
Effects ofimgvements in exchange rates - 0.4 o - 0.4
As at 31 December 2021 (50.0) (0.7} (50.7)
Current (9.3} (0.4) 9.7)
Non-current B B B B o (40.7) 3% (41.0)

Expenses recognised in profit or loss dunng the peried in relabion to leases not shown in the above tahbles are:
2021
_ B - ) _ - £m

Expense refating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

- praperty assets ) 0.3
- non-property assets R I — 0.2
1.2

Expense relating to service and other related charges

The Group had total cash outflows for leases in the period of £7.3 milion.



13. Financial risk management

The Group 15 exposed to tinancial risks arising from its
financial nstruments as part of Its day-to-day operations.
These broadiy fall within four categories: hquidity risk, credit
risk. fareign currency risk and interest rate risk, The areas of
exposure and the Group’s approach to management of the
risk are detailed below.

13.1 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk occurs from a lack of available funding in the
location or currency required, when required.

The Group is sufficiently cash generative to cover its
operational requirernents and has significant cash raserves
avaifable on a daily basis. Cash is held as easily accessibie
in interest-tearing current accounts, liquidity funds or
short-term depasits. The Graup alse has access to a

£50 million undrawn revolving credit faclity should
exceptional operational ar investment requirements arise.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To manage this risk, the Group’s central treasury team
monitors global cash requirements via short- and medium-
term rciling forecasts which are reviewad by management
on a regular basis. This takes into corsideration receipts and
payments in each of the Groug’s various focal currencies.
A certain level of operational funds is maintained locally
taking into account the liguidity of the local market to
cover any unforeseen or emergency payments. Due to the
central control, the Group treasury team has the ability to
maove funds quickly around the Group should further
resource be required.

The Group has access to currency trading lines to enable
conversian of funds from/to all the Group’s trading
currencies as hecessary within the agreed settlement limis.

The tahle below anaiyses tie Group's financial habilities
into refevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities and represents the grass, undiscounted
contractual cash flows.

At 31 December 2021 Total
<12 Betweenl Between2 Over contractual Carrying
months and 2 years and 5 years 5years cash flows value
= ) £m Em_ £m Em £m £m
Trade and other payables (222.5) 2.0y (0.9) - (225.4) (225.4)
Borrowings - (2,733.4) - (2,733.4) {1,921.4)
Lease liabilities o 9.7 7.4 (18.5) (24.5) (60.1) (50.7)
Total financtal liabilities (232.2) (9.4) (2,752.8) _(24.5) (3,018.9) (2,197.5)
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13.2 Credit risk

For cash management and investment purpases, credit
risk 1s managed centrally on a Group basis. The Group’s
treasury policy requires a minimum long-term rating of A
{Standard & Poor's) or A2 (Moody’s) for any bhanking or
financial mstitution. New counterparties reguire approval by
a subcommittee of the beoard and ratings are reviewed on a
reqular basis. Limits are set for the maximum amount

that can be held per counterparty tc reduce the Group's
exposure to any one institution. Investment products such
a3 hguidity funds require a long-term rating of AAA/Aaa
with any exception to this needing approval from the Chief
Financial Officer.

Faor dertvative financial instruments, the Group maintaing
muitiple foreign currency tracing lines onty with financiai
institutions that meet the ratings as noted above. Trading
limits are established so that, at any time, the fair value
of favourable contracts outstanding with any individual
counterparty does not exceed the approved maximum
exposure thresholds,

The Group manages its credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables through weli-astabiished and communicated
project management policies which those responsible for
contracting with new clients on behalf of the Group are
reguired to adhere to, These policies require customer
creditworthiness to be established prior to entering into a
ceontractual relationship through a combination of company
history and historical financial data checks, a puklic search
of infermation and in some instances obtaining an external
credit report Lo facilitate the decision-making. Where there
is a fack of information availabie or information may suggest
a ligher level of defauit risk, the Group reguires mut:gation
through advance payment. obtaining parental guarantees or
bank guarantees. Further detail on the Group’s assassment of
expected credit losses is included in note 4.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of
finarncial assets as shawn iy notes 4 and 14,



13.3 Foreign currency risk

The Greup has an internaticnal footprint and consequently
as part of its day-to-day operatiens is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currencies but primarily
the US dollar. euro. Sweadish krona and Dantsh and Norweglan
krone. This expasure anses when commercial transactians
and refated financial assets and lizhilities are denominated
In a currency that 1s not the entity’s fungtional currency.
While the Groun's currency inflaws provide a natural offsat
against local expenses, they are generally in excess of

the costs and result in net currency inflows for the

Group whose administrative ccst base is predoeminantly
sterling denominated.

The Group uses simpie derivatives (forward contracts
and swaps) to help manage this risk at a project level or
for significant non-project financial assets or liabilities.,
Reguirements reviewed on a project-by-project basis take
into consideration size and duration of the project as well
as the contracted bilking currency. Parameters and limits
for tracing are defined in the Group’s treasury policies as
approved by the board of directors and can only be
performed by the Group treasury team.

At 31 December 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hedge accounting is not currently applied for these
instruments. Details of the Group’s open forward contracts is
included in note 17.

The remaining currency exposure is monitored and managed
centrally primarily through forecasting net currency
raquirements in each of the trading currencies and selling
excess currency intc GBP, the Group’s functional currency,
on a reqular spot basis. The effect of foreign currency
differences on foss before tax s disclosad in note 7.2.

Sensitivity

The Group has a numier of foreign currency-denominated
financial assets and financial liabdities held within 1t3
subsicharies which create exposure to translation risk, The
Group’s exposure at the reporting date by key currency is
noted belaw. translated into sterling at the closing rate:

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Net exposure

usd ELR DKK Other Total
Em £m £m £m _ £Em
300 16.6 180 7.1 71.7
84 (18.5) (237 (9.1 (58.7)
20.6 0.1 (5.7) (2.0} 13.0
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As shiown above, the Group is primarily exposad to changes in USD/GRBP. Thase expasuras ga to the Groupn's profit or lass
and are predominantly generated from the Groug's treasury entity which holds cash and intra-Group loans in a variety
of curtancies. i exchange rates fluctuated by +/- 10 per cent, this would result in the following impact on the Group’s

income statement:

uspb EUR DKK Other Total
2021 £m £m £m tm tm
+10% (1.9 - 0.5 0.2 a2
-10% 2.3 {0.1) (0.0) (0.2) 14
13.4 Interest rate risk Interest rate risk on fixed-1ate borrowings exists where

The Group's main interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group

to cash flow interest rate risk. The principal amaount of the
Groug's total long-term borrowings at 31 December 2021,
was £1.832.2 million of which 65 per cent was fixed interest
rate Instruments.

The Graup fixes interest rates on its variable rate botrawiigs
in comphance with contractual requirements, or where iLis
considgered economrcally benaficial to do so, based on the
remaining maturity of the borrowing, indicative price to fix
and market expectation on future interest rale increases.

The Group's treasury policy allows the use of floating-to-fixed
interest rate swaps to achieve this when necassary.

During the period there has been continued fow volatiiity in
the reference interest rates and while there are indications
of interest rate increases over the coming year, management
have assessed the interest rate risk exposure to he within a
tolerable level and therefore no specific hedging has been
implemented. This position 1s reviewed on a guarierly basis
by obtaining indicative floatma-fixed swap pricing for a
range of ferms up to the repayment date.

the Group is locked into rates which are adverse to current
market rates if the differential impacts the Group’s ability
tc be competitive in comparisen 1o other particigants in
the market.

All of the Group’s borrowing instruments are held at
amortised cost and conseguently there is no balance sheet
exposute to far value fluctuations.

Sensitivity

Profit ot 1058 15 sensitive to the interest expense on the
Group's borrowings. An adverse movermnent in SONIA

{(the replace benchmark rate for sterfing LIBOR) by 0.5 per
cent would increase the interest charge by £3.25 million on
an annual basis.

13.5 Capital risk

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
maximise shareholder value while safeguarding the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and to provide resource
opticns for investment opporturities. In common with private
equity partfolio companies. the Group carres a hrgh leva!

of net debt compared to equity. Total capital is calculated

as total eguity as shown in the consclidated statement of
financial position, plus net debt. Net deht is calculated as the
total of borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position. less cash and cash eguivalents,



14. Financial assets and liabilities

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021
Financial assets Em
Held at amortised cost
Trade receivables 99.4
Loans to key management personnel 0.1
Borrowings: own preference shares held by employee penefit trust 28.8
Other receivables* 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents ) B 1832
. o 3128
2021
Financial fiabiliﬂes o _ £m
Held at amortised cost
Trade and other payables* (224.4)
Borrowings (1,950.3)
Held at fair value through profit or |oss
Trade and other payables” - _ . aom
_ @17

*Excluding non-fimancal assets or liablities
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4.1 Fair values

For instruments Meld at amortised cost, management
consider that the carrying amounts approximate to the fair
values due to the short-term matunties of these instruments,
except for certain of the Group's borrowing instruments as
disciosed In note 18.

Far mstruments held al fair value, the carrying amount in the
table above s the fair value,

The Group is required to classify each instrument held at
fair value into one of the hierarchy levels (as prescribed in
accounting standards) to reflect the source and rehability of
inputs used in determming fair value.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as pubicly traded derivatives, and egurty
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
mnstruments are included in Level 1.

ﬂt 31 December 2021

Financial fiabilities

Trade and other payables

Level Z; The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded 1n an active market (e.g. over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined using vatuation technigues which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. if all significant inputs required
to tair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

Level 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs 1s not hased
an observaple market data, the instrument :s included in
Level 3.

The classification of Group’s financial instruments held at fair
value is shown in the table below,

Total financial liabilities

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total

) ~ £m . Em _Em ) Em
- B - (1D (1.0

- - 1.0) (1.0%

The Group’s foreign exchange forward cortracts are Level 2
derivative financial instruments. The fair value is remeasured
cn a menthly basis with reference to available forward market
rates and comparative instrument pricing. The counterparties
are strong financisl institutions and therefore no adjustment
is considered ta be required for counterparty credit risk.

The Group’s tevel 2 financial instruments are amounts
payable in respect of PA Consulting historical business
acquisitions, The value paid out is dependent on meeting
certain financial performance criteria. The far value is
determined using management’s financial forecasts against
those targets to ascertain the most likely level of payment in
line with the contract,

Further details of the Group’s financial instruments are
inchuded in the foliowing notes 15 to 18.



15. Other current assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021
£m
Prepayments S 59
Taxation 8.8
Loans to staff 0.1
Withholding tax debtor 0.9
Other debtors ~ _ B 4.0
1y

16. Trade and other current liabilities
2021
£m
Trade payables o ; - ———(1_9)
Other taxes and social security (33.4)
Deferred employee remuneration {135.2)
Accrued interest on senior debt (7.3)
(44.7)

Other payables

(2225

&7



17. Derivatives

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes 171 Forward currency contracts

and not as specalative investments. However, whera

derivatives do not meet the hedge accourting critena, they The Group uses forward contracts to sell foreign currency
are classified as ‘held for trading’ and are accounted at fair in relation to certain of its foreign currency-dencminated
value through profit or loss. During the penod, the Group cammercial contzacts. The fair value of outstanding forwar
used non-complex derivatives as noted belaw. contracts at the reporting date is shown in the table below.

This represents the market value if the Group were to close
the contracts out at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2021

Buy Sell
Currency Currency Fair value
o i _ Average rate CCY'00C Averagerate  CCY'Q00Q ~__F000
Current
_ Usdollar ) o - - - 1.3323 (1,244) s

20




18. Borrowings

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2021. the Group had borrowings comprising senior debt and redeemable preference shares as detailed in the

table below.

These are classified as loans and other interest-bearing debt instruments as detailed in the table helow.

Principal Interest Maturity
. £m rate
Senior debt (650.0} LIBOR' + 3.25% 28 March 2027
Redeemable preference shares 1,182.2)
Redeemable preference shares owned by empioyee
benefit trust _ - 26.3
Net redeemabie preference shares } (1.155.9) _12% B
Total Borrowings _ (1,805.9) _

i.  Subseguent to 31 December 2021, the reference interest rate on the Group’s senior debt was changed from LIBCR to SONIA due to the publication of sterling
LIBOR settings ceasing on 1 January 2622, The new rate of interest will be SONIA + 0.0328% pius & margin between 3.25-4.25% depending on the Group's net

ieverage ralio.

As at 31 December 2021

Total

Current Non-current
) £m £m £m
Senior debt - (650.0) (650.0)
Redeemable preference shares - (1,300.3) (1,300.3)
Redeemnable preference shares owned by employee benefit trust - 289 _ 28.9
Net redeemable preference shares _ - (1271.4) (1,271.4)
Total Borrowings ] ) ] - (1,921.4) {1,921.4)
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The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are determined by using the discounted cash
flow method applying z discolnt rate that reflects the issuer's
borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The

fair values are considered to be materially the same as the
carrying values noted above, except for the preference
shares, which has been assessed as £1,565.9 mullion, The

own non-performancea risk as at 31 December 2021, was
assessed to be msignificant in ali cases.

Specific terms and conditions of the debt instruments are
noted below.

Senior debt

The senior debt is a term loan secured by a charge over the
entities within the Group. The borrowing agreement was
antered into with Jacobs Enginesring Group Inc on 2 March
2021, to provide funding for the Company's acquisition of the
DA Consulting Group. Minimal fees were incurred n arranging
the facility and therefore the Group did not capitalise any
amounis in relation to the loan.

The loan contains certain financial covenants and restrictions
on providing security over the Group's assets to any party
outside of the Group, Compliance with the covenants is
reported on a quarterly hasis, Thare has been no notfiable
avent of default durihg the current year.

Redeemable preference shares

The preference shares were issued on 2 March 2021 at £1
each. Dividends accrue at the rate of 12 per cent per annum,
compounded on an annual basis. The shares are mandatorily
redeermnable at the earlier of an investment disposal by
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc, or five years In-hne with a
contractual Valuation event. While currently this is not a
defined date, it dees represent a reguirement for redemption
outside of the shareholder’s controi and therefore the shares
have been recognised as habifities.



NCTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. Capital and reserves

19.1 Share capital

19.1.1 Authorised shares

2021

S - Thousand
Ordinary A shares of £0.01 each 137,220
Ordinary B shares of £0.01 each 73,888
Crdinary C shares of £0.01 each _ ) ] B 70,369
_ o - ) __ 281,477
] B ] _ - Crdinary A shares Ordinary B shares Ordinary C shares
Norminat Nominal Nominal

Issued and fully _paid Thousands value £m Thousands value £m Thousands  value fm
Issued on 2 March 2021 137,220 1.4 73,888 0.7 - -
lssued on 7 July 2021 e .- 17ga4 02
As 3] December 2021 137220 14 73888 0.7 17.824 0.2

On 20 November 2020, 1 ordinary A £1 share was Issued for £1.

On 2 March 2021, the 1 ordinary A £1 share was subdivided into 1060 ordinary A £0.01 shares and ‘ully paid up at £0.05 each.
On 2 March 2021, 137,219,782 ordinary A £3.01 shares were issued at £0.05 each for the total cash consideration of £6.860,989
resulting in a share premium of £5,488,791. The allotment of shares 1s fully pad up.

Qn 2 March 2021, 73,887,769 ordinary B £0.01 shares were issued at £0.05 each for the total consideration of £3,694,382
{cash - £1,107,344, non-cash £2,587.044) resulting in 3 share premium of £2,955,511. The allotment of shares s fully paid up.

On 7 July 2021, 17.823.768 ordinary C £0.01 shares were issued at £0.05 each for the total cash consideration of £891.188
resulting in @ share premium of £712,951. The allotment of shares 1s fully paid up.
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19.1.2  (Classrights

Share class __Voting rights Dividend rights

Ordinary A shares ) Full voting rights The right to all dividends
Ordinary B shares ) Full voting rights The right to all dividends
Ordinary C shares No voting rights The right to aIIVdividends

19.1.3  Priority on a return of capital or sale

Share class ) Amount

Qrdinary shares (A and B) Entitled to the balance of the surplus assets in proportion to the amount paid up.

Entitled to a calculated share of the surplus assets as defined in the Company’s articles of

Ordinary shares (C) association

The purpose of the Group's employee benefit trust (EBT) 15 to facilitate snd encourage the ownershig of shares by employees
through repurchasing shares held by previous employees and holding them for subseguent sale or grant. Qwn shares held are

treated as a deduction from shareholders’ funs.

At the reporting date, the EBT held the following ordmary shares:

19.2 Own shares held by employee benefit trust

2021

. _ Thousands
Ordinary B shares 4,696
Ordinary C shares _ 620
5,316

19.3 Nature and purpose of reserves

16.3.1 Own share reserve

The own share reserve camprises the cost of the Company’s shares held by the PA 2004 ESOP.

19.3.2  Foreign currency translation reserve

The translation reserve comprisas all fareign currency differences anising from the translatian of the financial statements of
foreign operations and the proceeds received from Employees on the purchase of the companies ordinary C shares due to

conchtions over those shares which have not yet been met.



20. Share-based payments

The Group only operates one share scheme, the Managament
Equity Plan (MEP). The related expense recognised for
employee services received during the year in relation to

the scheme is £0.5m which is racorded as an equity-settled
share-hased payment expense, included within

employment costs,

Management Equity Plan

Under the MEP, certam semor personnel are awarded the
opportunity to purchase an aliocation of the Company’s
ordinary C shares at the unrestricted market price relevant
at the grant date as determined by third party valuation
experts.

The potential incremental growth in value of the ordinary

C shares following the issue is only available to participants
through continued employment in the Group for at least two
years after ther first purchase of the shares. The proportion
of shares from the award that are applicable for price~-growth
realisation (termed as ‘Fair Market Value (FMV) shares”)
increases based on the length of service of up to five years
when a Valuation event can be triggered and ali shares
become FMV shares.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fair vaiue of the Plan is estimated at the grant date using
a Monte Carlo pricing model taking into account the terms
and conditions on which the shares were issued. The service
condition is only considered in determining the number of
instruments that will ultbimately vest,

As the settlement of the price-growth at a Valuation event
is not the obligation of the Company nor the timing of
settlement in the control of the Company, the Group
accounts for the Plan as an equity-settled plan where
empioyees are expected to remain in employment through
to a Valuation event.

If a material number of employees were expected to ieave
ahead of that date, the propertion of shares 1ssued to the
expected leavers wouid be treated as cash-settled.

The Group does not expect a material number of those
awarded ardinary C shares {¢ leave,

Details of the ardinary C shares outstanding durning the reporting period are as folows:

_ o2
Weighted average

‘ e Number purchase price

At 20 November 2020 - -
Granted 17,823,768 £0.05
Forfeited - (620,000) £0.05
17203768 _£0.05

Qutstanding at 31 December 2021

Of which unconditional FMV shares
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The weighted average fair value of awards 1ssued during the period was £0.39 and wetghted average remaining contractual Iife
was 4.2 years as al the reporting date.

The inputs into the Monte Carlo maodel used o determine the Farr value are as follows:

Issue qate e _ 7Juy 202
Equity value ) _ £1,178m
Expected volatility ) _ 30%
Expected Life o - 4.73 years
Risk-free rate ) . ] ) X _ 0.25%
Expected dividend yield e _ ) 0%
Expected volatility was determined by reference to the The risk-free rate is the yield on UK government gilts at the

fhistorical share price volatility as at the issue date for a issue date.
sample of comparative listed companies over the same
period as the expected life f the award.

The expected life used in the model has been determined
based on management’s best estimate of the expected
timing of a Valuation or Exit event.



21. Retirement benefits

Group

The Group operates a number of pension arrangements
throughout the warld, the forms and benefits of which vary
with conditions and practices in the countries concerned.
The largest arrangements are self-administered and their
assets are held incependently of the Group's finances in
either separate trustee-administered funds or insurance-
based schemes. The principal arrangements are in the
United Kingdom and comprise both defined contribution
and defined henefit schemes.

On acguisition, the UK "PA Pension Scheme’ and the 'PA
Mirror Legacy Pension Scheme’ were i buy-in arrangements.
The assets of the schemes were invested in bulk-purchase
annuity policies with Pension tnsurance Corperation plc.

The buy-in arrangement means that the Group does not have
exposure to movements in the scheme obligations and is not
reguired to make contributions into the schemes,

On 24 June 2021, The buy-in policy in respect of the
remaining mermbers in the PA Pension Scheme was converted
inte individual policies In the members names with PiC, the
insurer, such that the liabilities/assets were assianed to PIC.
This was treated as a settlement of benefits from the PA
Pension Scheme, This left the PA Pension Scheme with

zaero assets.

NQTES TO THE FINANCEAL STATEMENTS

On 7 September 2021, the Trustee of the PA Mirror Legacy
Pension Scheme signed a transfer agreement and received an
estimated liabitity of £1 millron from tne PA Pension Schieme
in relation to potential top-ups in respect of GMP equalisation
for members who transferred out of the PA Pension Scheme
prior to the purchase of the ariginal buy-in palicy on 14 June
2018, This movement of liability is shown as a negative past
service cost far the PA Pension Scherme, offset by a matching
positive past service cost for the PA Mirror Legacy Pensicn
Schame, Foliowing this movement of the past service cost,
the PA Pensian Scheme was left with zero lighifities/assets
and was subsequently wound up on 7 Septermber 2021,

211 Defined contribution pension arrangements

The tota!l pension costs for the Group relating to employer
contributions to defined contribution pension arrangements
were £15.9 midlion. At 31 December 2021. there were
autstanding unpaid contributions of £4.1 million.
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21.2 Defined benefit pension arrangements

21.2.1  Analysis of defined benefit pension arrangements with net assets and liabilities included in the Group statement

of financial pesition

Prudential
PA Mirror Legacy Platinum
Pension scheme scheme Germany
UKclosed UK closed closed Total
As at 31 December 2021 ] £m fm Em £m
Defined benefit pension arrangements with gross assets
(liabilities) {1.0) 0.2 (4.0) (4.8)
Restriction to apply on recognition of surplus - (0.2) - (0.5
Total pension liabilities included in the Group statement of
financial position ] B jeny); - @0 5.0
21.2.2  Analysis of amounts recognised in the Group income statement
PA Mirror
Legacy  Prudential
PA pension Pension Platinum
scherng scherme scheme  Germany
UK wound-up UK closed UK closed closed Total
As at 31 December 2021 £m £m £m £m £m
Historical service costs B - 1.0 (1.0 - - -
Reccgnised in arriving at operating profit 1.0 (Lo - -
Other finance costs _ o N - - [N - ) (0.1)
Total recognised in the G_roup income statement 1.0 (1.0} 0.1 - (0.1
21.2.3  Analysis of amounts recognised in the Group statement of other comprehensive income
PA Mirror
Legacy  Prudential
PA pension Pension Platinum
scheme scheme scheme  Germany
UK wound-up UK closed UK closed closed Tatal
As at 31 December 2021 o ~ fm Em Em £m £m
Actual return on assets less interest (50.6) 10 - - (49.6)
Actuarial loss on liability 50.6 (1.0) 01 c.n 43,0
Restriction to apply on recognition of surplus ) ) , - - - ] - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised on defined benefit
pension arrangements - - 0.1 0.7) (0.6)
Deferred taxation ] - - - - R
Total recognised in the Group statement of other
- 0.1 7 (0.6)

comprehensive income ) -




213 PA Pension Scheme

This scheme was wound up on 7 Septembar 2021, The recunciliation of scheme assets and liabilities from the date of

acuisition of the PA Group to the winding up of the scheme are provided below.

21.3.1 Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021
£m

On acquisition

Interest on obligation

Benefits paid

Actual return plan assets less interest

Curtailments and settlements (on issuance of individual policies to the remaining members)

687.7
5.9
(13.0)
(50.6)
(630.0)

At 31 December

21.3.2  Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities

202
fm

On acquisition
Interest on obligation
Benefits paig
Transfer of past service credit and settlements
Actuarial gains/(losses) due to:
Experience gain
Changes in financial assumptions

Curtailments and settlements (on issuance of individual policies to the remaining members)

(688.7)
(5.9
13.0
1.6

11.4
39.2
630.0

At 31 December
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214 PA Mirror Legacy Pension Scheme

The most recent actuarial funding valuation has been updated by Lane Clark & Peacock LLP in order to assess the liabilities
of the scheme at 31 December 2021 for the purposes of AS 19 Employee Benehits. Scherne assets are stated at their market
value at 31 December 2021. The principal assumptions used in this valuation by the actuaries were:

21.4.1  Principal assumptions

2021
%
Retail price inflation 3.5
Consumer price inflation untit 31 January 2030 o o 25
Consumer price inflation after 31 January 2030 34
Weighted average consumer price inflation 2.9
Discount rate - B ) i 1.9
Pension increase rate RPI 35
Pension increase rate based on weighted average CPI ~ . N 23
The post-retirement mortality assumptions used were as follows:
) S e
Life expectancy of pensioners age 60 in 2021
* Men 289
* Women 31.4
Life expectancy of pensioners age 60 in 2036
= Men 30.1
= Wemen - o o -
Weighted average duration 141




21.4.2  Scheme assets and liabilities

NOTES 7O ThE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021

£m

Buy-in insurance policy ~ 35.8

Total fair value of assets . 359

Present value of scheme liabilities - _ (36.9)

Deficit in the scheme [eRY)]

Restriction to apply on recognition of surplus o -

Pension deficit S ¢ 1)

The scheme assets as a percentage of the total scheme assets are as follows: 5071

%

Buy-in i‘nSUfance policy 100.0
21.4.3 Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

20

S . _fm

Qn acquisition 355

Interest on assets 0.5

Benefits paid (1.1}

Running costs -

Actual return plan assets less interest - . R =

359

At 31 December

The actual return on scheme assets was a gam of £1.5 mithon.
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21.4.4  Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities

2021
) B Em
On acquisition (35.5)
Interest on obiigation (0.5)
Benefits paid 11
Past service credit and settlements {1.0)
Actuarial gains/{losses) due to:
Experience gain {0.9)
Changes in financial assumptions ©0.2
Changes in demographic assumptions - ) B 0.1
At 31 December ) i N (36.9)

21.4.5 Sansitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reperting date to one of the relevant actuanal assurnptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown belaw.

21 December 2021

Increase Decrease
- fm £m
Discount rate {0.1% movement) (0.5) 0.5
Inflation rate (0.1% movement) A 7 04 _{0.4)

21.5 Qther defined benefit arrangements

AL 31 Decemnber 2021, the Group had a closed defined benefit scheme in the UK (Prudential Piatinum scheme) with net assets
of £nil and a closed defined ienefit scherme in Germany with a net liability of £4.0 milhon. The full disclosures as required by
IFRS are not provided hecause, in Lthe directors’ apinion, these arrangements are immaterial to the net assets of the Group.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. Capital and other financial commitments

There were capital commutrments of £2.2 millioh contracted for but not provided in the financial statements at 31 December 2021,

The Graup has quarantead bid, performance and rent bonds issued by (s banks an s behalf in the ardinary course af business
totaling £2.0 million as at 31 December 2021, These are not expected to result in any material financial loss.
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23. Subsidiary undertakings

The subsiciary undertakings as at 31 December 2021 are shown below. All are included in the Group financial statements and
are wholly owned etther directly, or indirectly, by the Company unless otherwise stated, All subsidiaries prepare accounts up lo
31 December each year except for PA Consuiting Services (Indig) Private Lumited. Nyras Limited and Nyras Capital LR, which
prepare accounts up fo 31 March.

Directly heid
Name Country Registered office address Class of share held Nature of business
PA Consulting Group United . .
Holdings Limited Kingdom 10 Bressencen Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Ordinary and preference  Halding company
Indirectly held
Name Country Registered office address Class of share held Nature of business
: Portland Towers, Goteborg Plads 1 ‘
P , .
A Consulting Group A/S Denmark DK-2150 Copenfagen Ordinary Consultancy
; . Pertiand Towers, Goteborg Plads 1, ) ,
PA Consulting Holdings ApS  Denmark DK-2150 Copenaagen Ordinary Holding company
PA Consulting Group GmbH ~ Germany én der Welle 3, 60322 Frankfurt, Ordinary Consultancy
ermany
} L Suite 1106-8, 11/F. Tai Yau Building, No. .
PA Consulting Group Limited Hong Kong 181 Johnston Road, Wancha Ordinary Consultancy
PA Consulting Services . 4A & 4B Gold Nest, Wind Tunnel Rpad, .
(India) Private Limitec Incia Murugeshpalya, Bangalore 560017 Crdinary Dormant
¢/o velderrain Saenz y Asociados, 5.C.,
PA Consulling Group, S.de . Avenida Insurgentes Sur 1915-602, Col.
R.L deCV Mexico Guadalupe Inn, Alvaro Obregon, 01020 U0t Consuitancy
) Mexirco City i B -
¢/0 Velderrain Saenz y Asociados, 8.C..
PA Consuiting Mexico . Avenida Insurgentes Sur 1915-602, Col. .
Services S.A.de CV. Mexico Guadalupe Inn, Alvara Chregon, 01020 Ordinary Consultancy
_ __Mexico City L
. Gebouw B, Papendorpseweg 87, . i
PA Consulting Group BY Netherlands 3528 B Utrecht Ordinary Holding company
. . Gebouw B, Papendorpseweg 97, :
PA Consulting Services BV Netherlands 3528 B Utrecht Ordinary Consultancy
, Gebouw B. Papendorpseweg 97. ) .
PA Holdings BV Netherlands 3528 8. Utrecht Ordinary and preference  Holding company
) . Gebouw B, Papendorpseweg 97, . .
PA International Holdings BY  Netherlands 3528 B Utrecht Crdinary Holding company
o BDO Auckland, Level 4, BDQO Centre, 4 .
PA Consulting Group Limited New Zealand Graham Street. Auckland Central 1010 Ordinary Consultancy
Vi } X . .
PA Censulting Group AS Norway erkstedveien 1. PO Box 150, Skayen Ordinary Consultancy

Continued.

0277 Oslo
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Name _ Country Registered office address Class of share held Nature of business
PA Consulting Group (Qatar) Level 14, Commercial Bank Plaza, )
LLC Gatar West Bay, Doha Ordinary Consultancy
PA Consulting Group AB Sweden Jakobsbergsgatan 17, 111 44 Stockholm  Ordinary Consultancy
. United i
7 Safe Limited Kingdom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5DN - Ordinary Consultancy
Garden Finance Limited gi?:;ed%m 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5N Ordinary and preference  Helding company
Garden Midce 1 Limited Einr:;eddom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 50N Ordinary and preference  Holding company
: United
Nyras Capital LLP ) 10 Bressenden Place, Londorn, SW1E 5DN Consultancy
Kingdom
. United i
Nyras Limited . 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E SDN  Ordinary Consultancy
Kingdom
PA C_onsul_tlng Government Umted 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1IE 50N Ordinary Consultancy
Services Limited Kingdom
PA Consulting Group United . .
Finance Limited Kingdom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5BN  Ordinary and preference  Holding company
PA (Fonsultmg Holdings U-mted 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Crdinary Holding company
Limited Kingdom
PA Consulting Management  United ; i
Sarvices Limited Kingdom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWI1E 5DN  Ordinary and preference  Holding company
pA (.:OHSUIU"Q Services U.mte‘j 10 Bressender: Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Ordinary Consuitancy
Limited Kingdom
] . Uniteg . .
PA Finance Limited Kingdiom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Ordinary Holding company
pA Group Treasury Services  United 1C Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Crdinary Treasury services
Limited Kingdom company
. . United . .
PA Holdings Limited Kingdom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Ordinary Holding company
PA International Consulting United 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWI1E 50N Ordinary Holding company

Group Limited Kingdom
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Name

Limited

Limited

Limited

__Country Reg:stered office address Class of share held Nature of business
PA Knowledge Limited Ei?\l;idom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWI1E 50N Ordinary Consultancy
PA Middie East Limited L";:;Zim 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 50N Ordinary Consuftancy
PA Netherlands Treasury United . Treasury services
Services Limited Kingdam 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Ordinary company
PA Overseas Holdings U_mred 10 Bressenden Place. London, SW1E 5DN  Ordinary Holding company
Kingdom
PA Pension Trustees Limited" Ei::;?jim 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Ordinary Dormant
PA Pension Trustees United
Two Limited® Kingdom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN  Ordmary Trustee company
PA Perfect Cost Grid Limited Eir::;ﬁ)m 10 Bressenden Place, Landon, SW1E S5DN  Ordinary Consultancy
PA Technology Solutions United 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 50N Ordinary Consultancy
Kingdom
PA Treasury Services (US) United . Treasury services
Kingdom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1F SDN  Ordinary company
) United f i
PACGZ Limited Kingdom 10 Bressenden Place, London. SWI1E 5DN  Ordinary Halging company
United o Four;aer shares, growth )
Sparkler Limited Kir:1l ?jom 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWI1E 5DN  shares and ordinary Consultancy
L 9 ) . shares N -
We Are Friday Limited Einnl;eddom 50 Farringdon Road, Londan, ECIM 3HE  Ordinary Dormant
. 10 Maguire Road, Building 4, Lexington Common stock of no
Cooper Perkins Inc USA MA 02471 par value Consultancy
PA Consulting Group Inc. UsA 143 South Street, 6th Floor, Beston. Commen and preference  Consultancy
MaA 02111
PA US Holdings Inc. USA 143 South Street, bth Floor, Boston, Common and preference  Holding company
Ma 02111
Essential Inc USA 143 South Street, 6th Flaor. Boston, Comrnion Dormant

Ma 02111

4% holding ' accerdanoe with Qetar Cormmertial Companies Law.

Lo ARl pwned Dy PA CarsUthing Services Limited 52% ovined by trustees,
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24, Related party transactions

Compensation of key management personnel

20N

o B . ~ ) £m
Short-term employee benefits 27.9
Share-based payment transactions ) 0.1
Compensation of key management personnel _ ) 28.0

Inctuded in key management personnel compensation 1s £24.5 rmuil:on of one-off payments made as part of the overall
£188.4 million employee benefit trust distrbution (described in notes 6 and 6.1). These payments were made to key
rmanagement personnel in their capacity as historical employee shareholders of PA Consulting Group in connection with
the acguisition transaction,

Transactions with the controliing shareholder

During the period, the Group entered into transactions. in the ordinary course of business. with the controlling shareholder.
The sales to the cantrolling shareholder were subject to standard client procurement policies. The directors therefore consider
that ali such transactions have been entered into on an arm's-length basis. Transactions entered into. and trading balances
outstanding at 31 December, are as follows

Sales to Purchases from Trading amounts Trading amounts

controlling controlling  owed from controlling owed to controlling

sharehclder sharehoider shareholder shareholder

e ) _Em £rm o Em . f£m
201 105 i - . 4.7 ) -

Transactions with subsidiaries of the controlling sharehoider

During the period, the Group entered Nt transactions, n the ordinary course of Husiness, with subsidiartes of the controlling
shareholder, autside of the PA Consulting Group, The sales 1o the subsidiaries of the controlting shareholder were subject to
standard client procurement policies. The directors therefore consider that all such transactions have been entered into on an
arm's-length basis, Transactions entered into, and tracing halances outstanding at 21 December, are as follows:

Salesto Puchases from Amounts owed Armounts owed to
related party reiated party from related party related party
£m £m £m £m

2021 N 0.6 0.4 . 03 -
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25, Business combinations

25.1 Business combinations in 2021

On 2 March 2021, the Group acquired control of PA Consulting Group Holdings Limited (formerly PA Consulting Group
Limited) through the purchase of 100 par cent of the share capital for total consideration of £1.842.7 million (£1,575.9 milhon
cansideration to acguire 100 per cent of the tatal issued equity and £266.8 million to repurchase oJutstanding [oan notes

from Carlyle). PA Cansulting Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries provide expert consulting services in consumer and
manufacturing, defence and security, energy and utilities. financial services, government and public services, health and life
sciences, and transport, operating globally from offices across the UK, US. Netherlands and Nordics,



25.1.1 Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acguired and liabilities assumed

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair vaiue recognised on acquisition

o N £m
Non-current assets
intangible assets 720.9
Right of use assets 54.9
Property, piant and equipment 2/7.6
Deferred tax assets 4.0
Other non-current assets 10.2
. 8176
Current assets
Trade receivables 69.6
Contract assets 42.5
Derivative financial instruments 0.2
Other current assets 15.5
Cash and cash equivalents _ o 294.1
. _ 422.3
Current liabilities
Trade and other current liabilities (219.1)
Contract liabilities (28.3)
Lease lizhilities {9.0)
Borrowings (266.8)
Current tax liahilities 0.1
o _ (523.3)
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities (45.9)
Pension and other bost-employment liabilities (4.3}
Deferred tax liabilities (121.5)
Other non-current liabilities (4.0
e (175.7)
Total identifiable net assets 5409
Goodwill o ~ 1,035.0
Total consideration 1,575.9
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Fair value adjustments have been made in respect of:

+ recognition of customer relaticnship and trade name
intangible assets

+  deferred tax

Identifiable intangibles are customer relationships.
contracts and backlog and trade name and have estimated
fives ranging from nine to 20 years (werghted average fife of
approximately 12 years). '

The Group measured the acquired lzase liabilities using the
present value of the remaining lease payments at the date
of acquisiticn. The nght-of-use assets were measured at
an amount equal to the lease liabilities which resulted in
an increase in the book value of the acquired assets of
£15.5 million.

The fair vaiue of the frade receivables amounts to
£69.6 million. The gross amaunt of trade receivables is
£71.7 milhon and it is expected that the majority of
contractual amounts can be collected.

Goodwill recognised results from a substantial assembled
workforce, which does not gualfy for separate recogition,
as well as expected future economic benefits, Nane of

the goodwill recognrised is expected to be deductible for
1axX purposes.

25.1.2

The Company has not completed i1s final assessment of the
fair values of PA Consulting’s assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The final purchase price allocation could resutt in
adjustments to certain assets and lizbilities, including the
residugl amount gllocated to goodwill,

From the date of acquisition. PA Consulting Group
Holdings Limited contributed £676.8 million of reverue
and £97.9 million to profit before tax from continuing
operations of the Group. If the combination had taken place
al 1 Januvary 2021, revenue from continuing cperations
would have been £793.8 million and loss befare tax from
continuing operaticns for the Group would have been
£239.3 million. tf the combination had taken place on the
date of incorporation of the Company (20 November 2020)
revenue from continuing operations weouid have been
£880.5 million and the loss hefare tax from continuing
operat.ons for the Group weuld have been £219.6 million.

Less:

Purchase consideration and cash flows on acquisition

Total value

Total consideration 1,575.9
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities) (294.1)
Non-cash consideration (292.3)
Acquisition cost of financial instruments in a subsidiary ory_ie group 3 266@
Net cash outflow on acquisition 1,253
79

Transaction costs of the acquisition (included in cash flows from operating activities)

The Company issued 51,740.872 ordinary B shares and 259,748,290 preference shares as non-cash consideration.

The fair value of the consideration given was £252.2 million.

286. Controlling party

The controliing sharsholder and ulsimate controlling entity of the Group 4 Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.



Company statement of financial position

at 31 December 2021

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2021
Note £m
Assets _ .
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 5 1,333.1
Loan receivable . Ce 267.2
Total non-current assets 1,600.3
Current assets
Loan receivable (o5} 293.0
Cash and cash equivalents C7 0.2
Total current assets 293.2
Total assets ) 18935
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other current liabilities B Cc8g (50.9)
Total current liabilities ) _ (50.9)
Net current assets 2423
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 9 1,921.4)
Other non-current liabilities ) c1g (0.9
Total non-current liabilities i (1,922.3)
Total liabilities ~ (1,973.2)
Net liabilities (79.7)
Equity
Called-up share capital n 2.3
Share premium 9.2
Own shares reserve (1.1
Retained earnings ) (90.1)
_a9n

Total equity

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the baard of directors on 8 April 2022,

LR

Ken Toombs

Chief Executive Cfficer

PA Consulting Group Limited
Company number 12035335
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Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

for the period ended 31 December 2021

Share Share Own Retained
capital  premium  shares reserve earnings Total
) Nate £Em Em £m £m £m
Opening reserves on acquisition of employee
benefit trust _ - - . - 199.3 199.3
Loss for the period - - - (289.8) {789.8)
Transactions with owners of the Company
Issue of ordinary shares 19 23 9.2 - - 115
Movement in own shares held by employee trust - - (L1 0.1 (1.2)
Share based payment expense - - - 05 05
Total transactions with owners of the Company 2.3__ 9.2 (1.1) 04 108
At 31 December 2021 2.3 9.2 .1 (90.1) @97




ClL Basis of preparation

The Company is incorporated in the United Kingdom and
the separate financial statements of the Company have been
presented as reguired by the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
histarical cost convention (as madified to incluce revaluation
of certain financial instruments to fair value) and on the
going concern basis (see ngfe 1 to the consolidated

fingnieidl slatements). the Company meets the definition

of a guahfying entity under FRS 100 issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, Accordingly, the financial statements
have heen prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework and in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable ta companies using FRS 101

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advanlage
of the disclosure exemptions availakle under that standard in
relation to:

= |FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

*  paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 12 Farr Value Management
(disclosure of valuation technigues and inputs used for
fair value measurement of assets and liabilities)

* paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - comparative informaticn requirements in
respect of paragraph 78(a)(v) of 1AS 1 (a reconciliation
of the number of shares cutstanding at the beginning
and at the end of the period)

+ the following paragraphs of JAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements:

- 10(d) (statement of Cash flows)
- 15 (statement of compliance with all IFRS)

- 38A (reguirement for mimmum af twa primary
statements, including cash flow slatements)

- 38B-D (additional comparative information)
- 111 (cash flow statement information)
- 134-136 (capital management disclosures)

« 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

* paragraphs 30 and 31 of 1AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
(requirement for the disclosure of information when an
entity has net applied a new IFRS that has been issued
hut 1s not yet effective)

*  paragragh 17 of |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures {key
management compensation)

* the reguirements in [AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to
disclose related party transactions entered into between
two or more members of a group.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basis for the above exemptions is because equivalent
disclosures are included in the Group financial statements in
which the entity is consolidated.

The adopted principal accounting policies, which have been
applied cansistently, are the same as those set out in note

2 to the consolidated financial statements, except as noted
below in respect of those which are Company specific.

C2. Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated af cost less, where
appropriate, provisions for impairment,

C3. Critical accounting judgements
and estimates

The preparation of Company financial statements in
canfermity with FRS 101 requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the Company financial
staterments and the reported ameounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing has:s. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised. The critical acceunting
judgements and estimates have been set out in note 3 of
the conschidated financial statements. These judgements
have been applied consistently within the Company
financial statements.

C4, Income statement

In accordance with the exemption permitted by section
408 of the Compaties Act 2006, the Campany has elected
not to present its own income statement or staterment of
comprehensive income for the period,
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Cs. investments in subsidiaries

2021
} — Em
Investments on acguisition 1,332.6
Contributions to subsidiaries in respect of share-based payments 0.5
Closing Investments _ 1,333.1
Alist of subsidiary undertakings is included in note 23,
C6. Loans receivable
2021
_ . B £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Within 12 months 293.0
After more than 12 months 267.2
B B 560.2
Borrower Principal  Repayment Interest rate 2021
B £m - date Emr
Invastor loan notes Garden Midco 1474 Ondemand 12% 293.0
1Limited
Redeemable preference shares PA Consulting Group 134.5 12% 267.2
Holdings Ltd
- ] ) ] - 5602
Interest on each loan compounds annually.
C7. Cash and cash equivalents
2021
. . _ £m
0.2

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include £6.2 million held by Employee Benefit Trust that is restncted for specific use only.



NOTES TO THE FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

ce. Trade and other current liabilities
2021
fm
Amounts owed to subsidiaries (38.6)
Deferred empioyee remuneration (5.0)
Accruals . - (7.3
_ _ o _ _ (50.9)
co. Borrowings
2021
o B £m
Redeemable preference shares (1,300.3>
Redeemable preference shares owned by employee trust ] . 289
Net redeemable preference shares (1,271.4)
Senior debt i _ . o ] (650.0)
TJotal Borrowings - ~ _ ~ _ o (1,921.4)
C10.  Other non-current liabilities
2021
o o £m
Other payables . o ) ) JOR
cn. Share capital and reserves

Details of share capital and reserves are set out In note 19 to the Group financal statements,
Cl12. Commitments
Other than as disclosed in note €14, the Company has no commitments contracted for but not provided.

C13. Related party transactions

Directors’ transactions

The remuneration of the directors and related party transactions relating to directors of the Company are shown in note 24.
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Cl4.

Audit exemptions - s479A

The Company has guaranteed the liabilities of the following subsidiaries in order that they gualify for the exemption from audit
under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the period ended 31 December 2021:

Proportion
Class of of ownership  Nature of
Name Registered office address Reg No __share held interest business .
7 Safe Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E 5DN 04274874 Ordinary 100% Consuyltancy
Nyras Capital LLP 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5DN  OC304109 100% Consultancy
Nyras Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE SDN 06195106 Crdinary 100% Consultancy
PA Consulting Group ) Holding
Finance Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE SDN 09763513 Ordinary 100% company
PA Consulting ) Holding
Holdings Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5DN 08249452 Ordinary 100% company
PA Consulting Management 1, o oo place, Landon, SWIE5DN  0976355) Ordinary 100% Holding
Services Limited company
PA Finance Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWI1E 5DN 04001488 Ordinary 100% E;::;:%y
N - N Treasury
PA Group Treasury i i
Services Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5DN 01984216 Qrdinary 100% services
- o _ B company
PA Holdings Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5DN 02235016 Ordinary 100% c”;:{'):iy
PA International . Holding
Consulting Group Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWITE 50N G0B54631 Ordinary 100% company
PA Knowledige Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SW1E SDN 05196589 Ordinary 100% Consultancy
PA Middle East Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE SDN 06600426 Ordinary 100% Consultancy
- - 7 Treasury N
PA Netherlands Treasury 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5DN 05790697 Ordinary 100% services
Services Limited
- . - , ___.. fLompany
PA Overseas ) . Halding
Holdings Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5DN 02289193 Grdinary 100% company
PA Perfect Cost Grid Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE SDN 08339738 Crdinary 100% Consultancy
o . i i T Treasury -
fﬁ\“ K:gsury Services (US) 45 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE S5DN 08101083 Ordinary 100% services
o company
L . Holding
PACG2 Limited 16 Bressenden Ptace, London, SW1E 5DN 06555894 Ordinary 100% company
Founder
Sparkler Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE 5ON 04197111 z::::'agr:g""th 100% Consultancy
o ordinary;hares
We Are Friday Limited 50 Farringdon Road, London, ECIM 3HE 07107167 Ordinary 100% Dormant
PA Consulting Group . Holding
Holdings Ltd 10 Bressenden Piace, London, SWIE 5DN 09761378 Ordinary 100% Company
. L . Holding
Garden MidCo T Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE SDN 09761488 Ordinary 100% Company
. . . Holding
Garden Finance Limited 10 Bressenden Place, London, SWIE SDN 09763192 Crdinary 100% Company

As a condition of the exemphtion, the Company has guarantaed the period-end habibties of the relevant subsidiaries until they
are settled in full. The liabilities of the subsidiaries at the year-end was £20.4 rnillian. This s the first year that the Company has
provicled this guarantee (and therefoe Lhe cantingent liability) has existed.



About PA.

We belteve i1 tho power of ingenuity
to bulla a positive human future

As strategies. technelogies ana
mncyeation cothde, we craate
cpoortunty from complexty

Our diverse teams of caperis comoune
nrovative thinkig and breaktbreugh
dse of technologies to progress
further faster

Our chonts adapt and transtornm and togataer
we achieve encunng results

Aninnovation and transtermation consultancy.
we are over 4,000 specialists in consuimer and
manufacturing. defence and security, energy
and utihities Tnancial sorvices gowviasreent and
publc services health and hfe sciences. and
transport. Our people are strateg.sts. nnovotors
designers, consuitants, digitai cxperts, soentists
ongrienrs and sechnologists,

We operate clobaliv from offices acrosy the LK
US. Netherlands andg Nordcs.

Discover more al paconsulting.com
and connect with PA on LinkedIn and Twitter

PA_ Bringing Ingenuity to Life.




